
Chief Executive’s Office 

Continued…. 
 

� (01257) 515151   Fax (01257) 515150 www.chorley.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Mrs D Scambler 
Direct Dial: (01257) 515034 
E-mail address: Dianne.scambler@chorley.gov.uk 
Date: 16 March 2006 
 

Chief Executive: 
Donna Hall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE - MONDAY, 27TH MARCH 2006 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Audit Committee to be held in the Council Chamber, 
Town Hall, Chorley on Monday, 27th March 2006 commencing at 3.00 pm. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 1. Apologies for absence   

 
 2. Declarations of Any Interest   

 
  Members of the Committee are reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal 

interest in respect of matters contained in this agenda in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the 
Members Code of Conduct.  If the personal interest is a prejudicial interest, then the 
individual Member should not participate in a discussion on the matter and must 
withdraw from the Council Chamber and not seek to influence a decision on the 
matter. 
 

 3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

  To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held 
on 9 January 2006. 
 

 4. Audit Commission Items   
 

  a) Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback  (Pages 5 - 20) 
 

   Report of Audit Commission (enclosed). 
 

  b) Interim Audit Report  (Pages 21 - 36) 
 

   Report of Audit Commission (enclosed). 
 

  c) Opinion Memorandum  (Pages 37 - 46) 
 

   Report of Audit Commission (enclosed). 
 

  d) Performance Management  (Pages 47 - 70) 
 

 



2 

   Report of Audit Commission (enclosed). 
 

  e) Best Value Performance  (Pages 71 - 90) 
 

   Report of Audit Commission (enclosed). 
 

 5. Internal Audit Plan 2006/07  (Pages 91 - 102) 
 

  Report of the Director of Finance (enclosed). 
 

 6. Role and Membership of the Audit Committee  (Pages 103 - 110) 
 

  Report of the Director of Finance (enclosed). 
 

 7. Any other item(s) that the Chair decides is/are urgent   
 

 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Distribution 
 
1. Agenda and reports to all Members of the Audit Committee (Councillor L Lennox (Chair), 

Councillor T McGowan (Vice-Chair) and Councillors K Ball, Mrs P Case, P Goldsworthy, 
G Russell, R Snape and J Wilson) for attendance. 

 
2. Agenda and reports to Donna Hall (Chief Executive), Gary Hall (Director of Finance), Andy 

Armstrong (Assistant Audit Manager) and Dianne Scambler (Trainee Democratic Services 
Officer)for attendance. 

 

This information can be made available to you in larger print 

or on audio tape, or translated into your own language.  

Please telephone 01257 515118 to access this service. 
 

 
 

01257 515822 



3 

 
 

01257 515823 



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee 1  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 9 January 2006 

CHORLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Audit Committee 
 

9 January 2006 
 

Present: Councillor T McGowan (Vice-Chair) in the Chair and Councillors P Goldsworthy, 
G Russell, R Snape and J Wilson 

 
 

06.AU.01 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received by Councillor Lennox (Chair) and Ball. 
 

06.AU.02 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTEREST  
 
No Members declared an interest. 
 

06.AU.03 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 
11 July 2005 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

06.AU.04 INTERIM REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITIES AS AT 9TH DECEMBER 
2005  
 
The Director of Finance submitted an interim report of the work undertaken in respect 
of the Annual Audit Plan during the first, second and third quarters of 2005/06 and 
provided details on further review investigations and other Internal Audit activities 
during the period. 
 
An appendix to the report gave an assessment and rating on the adequacy of the 
controls for each of the systems examined by the Internal Audit Section during the 
period 
 
The report highlighted a number items of work that were being looked at by the 
Internal Audit Service in a wide range of areas across the Authority that fell under the 
following headings. 
 

• Main Financial & Other Significant Systems 

• Reviews into Key Business Risk Areas 

• Audit Specialisms 

• Work in Progress. 
 
Under Audit Specialisms concern was expressed over the accuracy of the Best Value 
Performance Indicators. 
 
The Review of Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPI’s) was given an Assurance 
rating of Limited. The indicators to be reviewed were selected using a selection criteria 
agreed with the Audit Commission. This resulted in the selection of 15 separate 
BVPI’s covering a range of Units for scrutiny. In only 4 cases could the figure be 
verified as accurate and free from interpretation. In all remaining cases the figure 
required some kind of amendment or alteration.  
 
The report contained a number of recommendations to effectively address the control 
weaknesses identified and to ensure that improvements in procedures are 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 1



Audit Committee 2  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 9 January 2006 

implemented for the accurate capture of data and calculation of figures for the current 
financial year. 
 
The Committee Members expressed their concern about the cost of regulation and 
assurance was sought that the Council uses its limited resources to best effect in 
terms of gathering and validating the data. Assurances were given that with respect to 
the audit input there is a risk-based approach that targets areas to be targeted. 
 
The issue was raised in respect of the Council’s approach to partnership 
arrangements and whether any audit work would be undertaken in this area. The 
Director of Finance informed the Committee that the initial audit planning work for 
2006/07 had identified this area as requiring some audit input and would be dealt with 
as part of the 2006/07 plan. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

06.AU.05 AUDIT COMMISSION ITEMS  
 
 
(a) Civil Contingencies  
 
The Audit Commission submitted a report on the new requirements of the Civil 
Contingencies Act in relation to Chorley Borough Council. 
 
Local Authorities have seven main duties: 
 

• risk assessment; 

• business continuity management ; 

• emergency Planning; 

• maintaining public awareness and arrangements to warn, inform and advise 
the public; 

• promotion of business continuity management to the commercial sector and to 
voluntary organisations; 

• co-operation; and 

• information sharing. 
 
A self-assessment checklist based on the ‘self-assessment tool: local authority 
emergency planning and business continuity’ was used to approach this audit. 
 
Chorley Borough Council had responded to the Civil Contingencies Act and had 
updated their Emergency Plan and developed a Business Continuity Plan. The main 
elements to comply with the Act appear to be in place or under development. 
 
Some areas of improvement were identified with recommendations given in the form 
of an Action Plan. 
 
RESOLVED – 1. That the report be noted. 
2. That the recommendations be actioned by the Head of Customer, 
Democratic and Office Support Services by the required date. 
 
(b) Other Work in Progress  
 
Mr G Kelly of the Audit Commission gave a verbal report outlining a number of other 
activities that they were working on with the Authority, these included; 
 

• Performance Indicators Report 

• Performance Management Update 

• Early closedown of the 2005/06 Accounts 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 2



Audit Committee 3  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 9 January 2006 

The Authority’s Direction of Travel was already in draft form and talks were currently 
taking place with Senior Management Group on whether to publish at this stage. 
 
Continuous work was being made on the Annual Audit Inspection on which they were 
hoping to report back on 6 March 2006. 
 
Other work included the steps being taken to minimise the impact of the new 
International Standards of Auditing that were being imposed on the Audit Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 3



Agenda Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Use of Resources 

March 2006 

Use of Resources 
Audit Score Feedback

Chorley Borough Council 

Audit 2005-2006 

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 5



© Audit Commission 2006 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 020 7828 1212  Fax: 020 7976 6187 Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

External audit is an essential element in the process of accountability for public 
money and makes an important contribution to the stewardship of public 
resources and the corporate governance of public services. 

Audit in the public sector is underpinned by three fundamental principles: 

 auditors are appointed independently from the bodies being audited; 

 the scope of auditors' work is extended to cover not only the audit of financial 
statements but also value for money and the conduct of public business; and 

 auditors may report aspects of their work widely to the public and other key 
stakeholders.

The duties and powers of auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are set out 
in the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Local Government Act 1999 and the 
Commission's statutory Code of Audit Practice. Under the Code of Audit Practice, 
appointed auditors are also required to comply with the current professional 
standards issued by the independent Auditing Practices Board.

Appointed auditors act quite separately from the Commission and in meeting their 
statutory responsibilities are required to exercise their professional judgement 
independently of both the Commission and the audited body. 

Status of our reports to the Council 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the 
Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the 
audited body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to members 
or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors 
accept no responsibility to:

 any member or officer in their individual capacity; or 

 any third party.

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0845 056 0566. 

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 6



Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Contents  3

Chorley Borough Council 

Contents

Introduction 4

Summary scores for each theme 5

Theme summaries 6

Financial reporting 6

Financial management 7

Financial standing 9

Internal control 10

Value for money 13

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 7



4 Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Introduction 

Chorley Borough Council 

Introduction
1 The annual use of resources (UoR) assessment evaluates how well councils 

manage and use their financial resources. It is a more stringent test than the 
auditor scored judgements that formed part of the comprehensive performance 
assessment (CPA) framework up until 2004. The scope of the assessment has 
also been widened.

2 The assessment focuses on the importance of having sound and strategic 
financial management to ensure that resources are available to support the 
Council’s priorities and improve services, covering five themes. 

3 Previously, ‘adequate arrangements’ were sufficient to score 3, but under the new 
approach meeting ‘adequate performance’ will score 2. Scoring is based on the 
following scale. 

1 Below minimum requirements – inadequate performance 

2 Only at minimum requirements – adequate performance 

3 Consistently above minimum requirements – performing well 

4 Well above minimum requirements – performing strongly 

4 The overall score for use of resources will be reported to the Council by the  
Audit Commission on 13 March 2006. The scores for Chorley Borough Council 
for the five themes are outlined overleaf. 

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 8



Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Summary scores for each theme  5

Chorley Borough Council 

Summary scores for each theme 
Overall, Chorley Borough Council is performing well on its use of resources. 

Key lines of enquiry (KLOE) Score 

Financial reporting 2 

1.1  The Council produces annual accounts in accordance with 
relevant standards and timetables, supported by 
comprehensive working papers. 

2

1.2  The Council promotes external accountability. 2 

Financial management 3 

2.1  The Council’s medium-term financial strategy, budgets and 
capital programme are soundly-based and designed to 
deliver its strategic priorities. 

2

2.2  The Council manages performance against budgets. 3 

2.3  The Council manages its asset base. 3 

Financial standing 3 

3.1  The Council manages its spending within the available 
resources.

3

Internal control 2 

4.1  The Council manages its significant business risks. 3 

4.2  The Council has arrangements in place to maintain a sound 
system of internal control. 

2

4.3  The Council has arrangements in place that are designed to 
promote and ensure probity and propriety in the conduct of 
its business. 

1

Value for money  3 

5.1  The Council currently achieves good value for money. 3 

5.2  The Council manages and improves value for money. 3 

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 9



6 Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Theme summaries 

Chorley Borough Council 

Theme summaries 
5 The key findings and conclusions for each of the five themes are summarised 

below.

Financial reporting 

FINANCIAL REPORTING 
Overall score  2 

Key findings and conclusions 

A satisfactory and reasonably supported set of accounts have been presented for 
audit, with good basic processes in place to make accounts available on a very 
timely basis and to publicise summary accounts. Although the accounts did 
contain a material error in each of last two years, these were isolated instances 
relating to SoRP compliant technical issues. 

Need to introduce a process of consultation with a range of stakeholders on 
content and format of future summary accounts. Consider the benefits of 
producing an annual report in a user-friendly format. 

Improvements needed to move to performing strongly  

KLOE 1.1 The Council produces 
annual accounts in accordance with 
relevant standards and timetables, 
supported by comprehensive working 
papers.

Complete and cross reference the 
working paper checklist to electronic 
working papers along with a predictive 
analytical review. 

Develop the planned approach to 
achieving WGA (Whole of Government 
Accounts) deadlines in the future, with 
further evidence of the necessary
re-engineering of processes.  

Improve the QA arrangements to ensure 
Statement of Accounts is fully SoRP 
compliant and free from material and non 
trifling errors.

KLOE 1.2 The Council promotes 
external accountability. 

Consult with stakeholders on summary 
accounts and then publish a format in 
response to that consultation. The 
summary should include an explanation 
of key financial information which is 
understandable to the public and 
available in a wide variety of formats.

Compile an annual report which is
user-friendly and available in a wide 
variety of formats. 

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 10



Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Theme summaries  7

Chorley Borough Council 

Financial management 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
Overall score  3 

Key findings and conclusions 

The Council has taken effective action to ensure that its medium-term financial 
strategy (MTFS), budgets and capital programme are soundly-based and are 
adequately designed to deliver its strategic priorities. Further improvements to the 
Council’s financial management arrangements can be made through incorporating 
the new community plan and other internal plans into the future MTFS to assist in 
the delivery of its strategic priorities. 

Performance is actively managed against budgets and the Council performs well 
on managing its asset base, and the capital strategy is being updated to reflect 
current priorities. 

Improvements needed to move to performing strongly  

KLOE 2.1 The Council’s medium-term 
financial strategy (MTFS), budgets 
and capital programme are soundly 
based and designed to deliver its 
strategic priorities. 

Council needs to prepare regular cash 
flow forecasts during the year. 

Ensure new community plan priorities are 
incorporated within the updated MTFS. 

Corporate business plan needs to include 
a three-year sensitivity analysis on 
revenue and capital assumptions. 

MTFS needs to be linked into other 
internal strategies and model balance 
sheets and cash flow over three years, 
which is agreed with partners and other 
stakeholders.

Council needs to regularly review FM 
arrangements to ensure they are fit for 
purpose and proactively manage any 
changes from future wider developments. 

KLOE 2.2 The Council manages 
performance against budgets. 

Review financial performance of the 
Council’s partners. 

Deliver regular financial management 
training for members and non-financial 
officers.

Produce accurate profiled financial 
monitoring reports for all budget holders 
ten days post month-end. 

Link operational activity-based cost driver 
indicators and risk assessments in budget 
monitoring reports.

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 11



8 Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Theme summaries 

Chorley Borough Council 

Improvements needed to move to performing strongly 

KLOE 2.3 The Council manages its 
asset base. 

Performance measures and 
benchmarking should be used to describe 
and evaluate how the Council’s asset 
base contributes to the achievement of 
corporate and service objectives, 
including improvement priorities, and the 
results shared with stakeholders.

The Council needs to further develop an 
approach for the co-ordination of asset 
management information and its 
integration with relevant organisational 
financial information. 

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 12



Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Theme summaries  9

Chorley Borough Council 

Financial standing 

FINANCIAL STANDING 
Overall score  3 

Key findings and conclusions 

In common with most authorities, the Council operates within tight budgets. The 
Council has a good track record of managing it's spend within budget, linking the 
level of reserves against the financial risks it faces. Minor improvements can be 
made on monitoring debtor income collection and the effectiveness of recovery 
arrangements. Strong performance can be secured through members monitoring 
of financial health indicators.

Improvements needed to move to performing strongly 

KLOE 3.1 The Council manages its 
spending within the available 
resources.

Members need to monitor key financial 
health indicators and the Council should 
consider opportunity cost of reserve 
levels against benefits accrued.

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 13



10 Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Theme summaries 

Chorley Borough Council 

Internal control 

INTERNAL CONTROL 
Overall score  2 

Key findings and conclusions 

The Council does have well-performing arrangements to manage its significant 
business risks largely achieved through the integration of risk management into its 
performance management and business planning framework. Although risk 
management is considered within each of the major partnerships, more work is 
required through formulating a partnership RM policy framework. To secure strong 
performance on managing risks broader staff and member RM-related training is 
required.

There are sufficient basic controls, strategies and policies in place to give the 
Council a well-performing regulatory framework, although there are no formalised 
arrangements for regular review of this documentation. There are arrangements to 
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and 
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful. Members are involved in the process 
which monitors systems of internal control. Some formalisation and development 
of existing procedures will be required before advancement to strong performance. 

However, some important elements have still not been embedded to ensure 
probity and propriety in the conduct of the Council’s business such as an adopted 
whistle blowing policy. Partnership arrangements need to be developed in this 
area. The approach to promote and ensure probity and propriety in the conduct of 
its business needs to be more proactive. 

Improvements needed to move to performing strongly 

KLOE 4.1 The Council manages 
its significant business risks. 

Adopt a formal assurance policy framework 
to manage partnerships risks. Formalise 
member arrangements through agreed terms 
of reference and regular reporting on 
corporate risks and ensure appropriate RM 
training for all members not already trained. 

Ensure risks in relationship to partnerships 
are formulated into a policy. 

Ensure risk management is embedded into 
the new performance management system 
including the appropriate capture and 
management of emerging strategic risks. 

The Council needs to consider how to be 
explicit in considering the upside of risks in its 
decision-making arrangements through to its 
day-to-day management of its activities. 

RM needs to be explicitly linked to policy 
review.

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 14



Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Theme summaries  11

Chorley Borough Council 

Improvements needed to move to performing strongly 

KLOE 4.2 The Council has 
arrangements in place to maintain 
a sound system of internal control. 

Introduce a formal procedure for the annual 
review of basic regulatory documentation. 

Extend the Audit Committee's terms of 
reference to more clearly specify its risk and 
governance remit and to support this with 
more awareness training. 

Put agreements in place for all the Council’s 
significant partnerships. 

Provide improved evidence that compliance 
with standing orders, standing financial 
instructions and the scheme of delegation is 
monitored by management, with any 
breaches identified and appropriate action 
taken.

Ensure the assurance framework is fully 
embedded in the Council’s business 
processes.

Set up an audit committee which is 
constituted as a full committee of the Council 
and is independent of both the executive and 
scrutiny functions. 

Take steps to ensure that the audit 
committee chair has received appropriate 
training on, financial and risk management, 
accounting concepts and standards, and the 
regulatory regime. 

The standing orders, standing financial 
instructions and scheme of delegation should 
make specific reference to partnerships.

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 15



12 Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Theme summaries 

Chorley Borough Council 

Improvements needed to move to performing strongly 

KLOE 4.3 The Council has 
arrangements in place that are 
designed to promote and ensure 
probity and propriety in the conduct of 
its business. 

Produce a whistleblowing policy which is 
issued to members, staff and made 
available to third parties on the Council’s 
website.

Introduce a register of interests for 
officers along with arrangements to 
review them to ensure appropriate action 
is taken were disclosures raise issues.  

Assess standards of conduct, including 
how effectively members are complying 
with the code of conduct, the number and 
type of complaints received, and takes 
action as appropriate. 

Develop a strong counter fraud and wider 
ethical governance culture which is 
supported and promoted by members 
and senior officers. 

Undertake proactive counter fraud and 
corruption work which is determined by a 
formal risk assessment. 

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 16



Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Theme summaries  13

Chorley Borough Council 

Value for money 

VALUE FOR MONEY 
Overall score  3 

Key findings and conclusions 

Costs for major services are at or below average compared with other district 
councils providing similar levels of service, allowing for the local context. The 
Council’s major service areas are typified by above average levels of performance 
and comparatively high levels of customer satisfaction. In overall terms, there is a 
positive relationship between costs, spending and levels of resident satisfaction. 

The Council understands the underlying reasons why its costs and spending 
patterns differ from nearest neighbours and there is evidence that these reflect 
policy decisions of elected members. Significant resources have been redirected 
and re-aligned to support key priorities. However, structures and processes for 
assessing the wider VFM of policy decisions for the whole community are not yet 
clear.

Information on costs and how these compare to others and to the quality of 
services achieved is being used to review and challenge VFM corporately and in 
major service areas. However, benchmarking of costs and service quality is not yet 
being used consistently throughout all services as a means of challenging costs, 
performance and VFM both currently and over time. 

Links between spending, investment and the Council’s corporate priorities are 
evident within day-to-day operational arrangements, and demonstrable 
improvement has been achieved in priority areas. However, there is not yet an 
agreed definition of what VFM means at Chorley BC. Service-based VFM 
assessments are not routinely undertaken and VFM targets are not widely set, 
suggesting that VFM considerations have not yet been fully integrated by all 
services into day-to-day management arrangements.

The Council has recognised the importance of Business Process Transformation 
(BPT) in securing improvements in service delivery and VFM. It reviewed its key 
processes in 2004 and a programme of priority areas was identified for BPT. There 
is evidence that this approach has helped to focus greater attention and resources 
on delivering efficiency improvements, particularly in relation to back office 
functions. Best value and other reviews have led to improvements in performance 
and VFM across a range of priority services.

Major variations between budget and spend to date are highlighted through the 
existing corporate financial monitoring reports. However, reports do not 
necessarily report on wider VFM issues, nor do they bring together information on 
costs and quality. The Council has still to fully integrate regular VFM monitoring 
into its existing performance management arrangements.

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 17



14 Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Theme summaries 

Chorley Borough Council 

Key findings and conclusions 

Members have agreed a programme of savings and efficiency gain targets linked 
to priorities. An efficiency statement is in place that sets out some detailed work 
streams and efficiency targets. The Council has identified a need to further 
develop its existing structures for monitoring and reviewing efficiency savings and 
is in the process of implementing initiatives to address identified areas of 
weakness. 

The Council understands the full short and long-term costs of its actions and there 
is evidence that it is taking account of these when evaluating options and making 
policy decisions. Capital projects are clearly and consistently appraised against the 
Council's priorities, the MTFP and its capital investment strategy. There is 
evidence that recent procurement and other spending decisions take account of 
full long-term costs and are supported by business cases to help guide and 
support further decision-making. 

More effective procurement practices are currently being developed and 
implemented by the Council so that VFM from procurement can be more clearly 
demonstrated at both strategic and transaction cost levels. There are some good 
examples of how wider procurement, including opportunities for joint and 
partnership procurement, are being used by the Council to improve service 
performance, quality and VFM. There is awareness that, in addition to cost, quality 
and VFM are relevant to procurement decisions.

There is evidence that the Council is making effective use of IT as a means of 
managing and improving VFM in its internal management processes, back office 
functions and frontline service delivery. 

Improvements needed to move to performing strongly 

KLOE 5.1 The Council currently 
achieves good value for money (VFM).

Benchmarking information on costs and 
quality of services achieved currently and 
over time needs to be used consistently 
throughout all services and corporately as 
a means of challenging performance and 
VFM.

VFM considerations need to be integrated 
by all services into their day-to-day 
operational management arrangements. 
Clear VFM targets are needed for senior 
managers and members to assess VFM 
and monitor its achievement. 

Structures and processes for assessing 
the wider VFM of policy decisions for the 
whole community need to be formalised. 

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 18



Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback Theme summaries  15

Chorley Borough Council 

Improvements needed to move to performing strongly 

KLOE 5.2 The Council manages and 
improves value for money. 

Bring together information on costs and 
quality of services in regular reporting to 
members.

Ensure full integration between all of the 
Council’s key strategies to enhance 
effective performance management 
arrangements.

Strengthen structures for monitoring and 
reviewing efficiency savings. 

Develop comprehensive and effective 
procurement practices so that VFM from 
procurement can be more clearly 
demonstrated at both strategic and 
transaction cost levels. 

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 19



Agenda Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Detailed Report 

March 2006 

Interim Audit Report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Audit 2004-2005 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 21



© Audit Commission 2006 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 020 7828 1212 Fax: 020 7976 6187 Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

External audit is an essential element in the process of accountability for public 
money and makes an important contribution to the stewardship of public resources 
and the corporate governance of public services. 

Audit in the public sector is underpinned by three fundamental principles: 

 auditors are appointed independently from the bodies being audited; 

 the scope of auditors' work is extended to cover not only the audit of financial 
statements but also value for money and the conduct of public business; and 

 auditors may report aspects of their work widely to the public and other key 
stakeholders.

The duties and powers of auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are set out in 
the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Local Government Act 1999 and the 
Commission's statutory Code of Audit Practice. Under the Code of Audit Practice, 
appointed auditors are also required to comply with the current professional 
standards issued by the independent Auditing Practices Board.

Appointed auditors act quite separately from the Commission and in meeting their 
statutory responsibilities are required to exercise their professional judgement 
independently of both the Commission and the audited body. 

Status of our reports to the Council 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the 
Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the 
audited body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-
executive directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the 
audited body. Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

 any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

 any third party.  

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0845 056 0566. 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 22



Interim Audit Report Contents 3

Chorley Borough Council 

Contents

Summary report 4

Introduction 4

Audit approach 4

Main conclusions 5

Detailed report 6

Core process review 6

Financial aspects of corporate governance 8

Internal Audit 11

Appendix 1 – Action plan 12

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 23



4 Interim Audit Report Summary report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Summary report 

Introduction

1 Our Audit and Inspection plan for 2004/05 outlined the work we would be carrying 
out to meet our Code of Audit Practice responsibilities, which includes a review of 
financial core processes and aspects of corporate governance. We have also 
included findings from our review of Internal Audit, carried out as part of the 
2005/06 audit.

2 Our findings are reported on an exception basis and we have only included the 
issues where we feel the Council should consider strengthening its 
arrangements.

Audit approach 

Accounts

3 We have reviewed the Council's core processes, which include: 

 the main accounting system (MAS); 

 budgetary control procedures; and 

 final accounts closedown procedures. 

Financial aspects of corporate governance 

4 We have assessed whether the Council has adequate arrangements to: 

 ensure financial standing is soundly based; 

 ensure systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective; 

 maintain proper standards of financial conduct and to prevent and detect 
fraud and corruption; and

 ensure the legality of transactions. 

Internal Audit 

5 Our review assessed the Internal Audit section against standards set out in the 
CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government, which represents 
proper Internal Audit practices. 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 24



Interim Audit Report Summary report 5

Chorley Borough Council 

Main conclusions 

6 Table 1 sets out the main conclusions from the work we have completed as part 
of our interim audit. 

Table 1 Main conclusions 

No significant issues arose in the three interim audit review areas. 

Audit area Conclusion 

Accounts Core processes provide a sound 
basis for the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from 
material misstatement or error. 

Financial aspects of corporate 
governance 

The Council has adequate 
arrangements in place to discharge 
its responsibilities. 

Internal Audit Internal Audit meet the standards 
set out in the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government.

7 Core processes need to be further improved on certain financial controls and 
closedown procedures to ensure compliance with the whole of government 
accounts future requirements. Aspects of corporate governance can be enhanced 
through:

 promoting awareness of ethical governance issues for officers and members; 

 adopting an approved whistleblowing policy; 

 integrating risk management into financial management and partnership 
arrangements; and 

 regular statutory compliance monitoring of regulations and policies. 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 25



6 Interim Audit Report Detailed report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Detailed report 

Core process review 

8 We are required to give an opinion as to whether the accounts present fairly the 
financial position of the Council and have been prepared in accordance with 
appropriate regulations and proper professional practices. 

9 The first stage of this element of the audit has been completed by reviewing the 
Council's core processes: 

 the main accounting system (MAS); 

 budgetary control procedures; and 

 final accounts closedown procedures. 

10 Table 2 provides a summary of the findings for each of the core processes. 

Table 2 Assessment of core processes 

Core processes provide a sound basis for the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement or error. 

Core
process

Summary of findings Conclusion 

Main
accounting
system

Whilst the majority of expected 
controls are in place, there is 
scope to improve the controls 
over:

 system balancing; 

 control account reconciliations 
for the main feeder systems; 

 bank reconciliations; 

 journals; and 

 system access levels. 

The main accounting 
system provides an 
adequate basis for the 
preparation of the 
financial statements. 

Budgetary
control
procedures 

The majority of expected controls 
are in place. However, there is 
scope to improve the controls 
over budget monitoring 
undertaken by budget holders. 

Budgetary control 
procedures provide an 
adequate basis for the 
preparation of the 
financial statements. 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 26



Interim Audit Report Detailed report 7

Chorley Borough Council 

Core
process

Summary of findings Conclusion 

Closedown 
procedures 

A well planned and structured 
approach exists to facilitate the 
accurate completion of the 
financial statements. 

However, there is scope to 
expand the closedown timetable 
to cover the following key tasks: 

 restriction of ledger access in 
run up to final update; 

 review and clearance of 
suspense accounts; 

 reconciliation of asset register 
to general ledger and final 
adjustments to capital 
charges;

 delivery of accounts to the 
Director of Finance prior to 
deadline;

 senior officer review of 
accounts and working papers 
before audit commences; and 

 regular progress meetings. 

Closedown procedures 
provide a sound basis 
for the preparation of 
the financial 
statements. However, 
there is scope to 
expand the closedown 
timetable to cover all 
the key issues. 

Recommendations

R1 Run trial balances on a monthly basis. 

R2 Where feeder system transactions are posted to the MAS during the 
year, ensure that: 

related control accounts are reconciled on a monthly basis; 

adequate working papers are maintained to evidence this process; 

control account reconciliations are reviewed and authorised by a 
senior officer; and 

unreconciled items are not carried forward.

R3 Ensure that the monthly bank reconciliation is: 

signed by the responsible officer; and 

independently reviewed and authorised by a senior officer.

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 27



8 Interim Audit Report Detailed report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Recommendations

R4 To improve control over the use of journals, ensure that: 

all journals are independently reviewed and authorised; 

there is adequate supporting information; and 

guidance notes are prepared for completing journals.

R5 Review users of the MAS on a monthly basis. 

R6 For the system of cash limited budget to be effective: 

develop procedures for budget monitoring; 

review budget monitoring information to ensure that it is fit for 
purpose; and 

ensure that staff involved in budget monitoring are adequately 
trained.

R7 Expand the closedown timetable to include all key issues. 

Financial aspects of corporate governance 

11 The Council has a responsibility to put in place arrangements to ensure the 
proper conduct of its financial affairs, and to monitor their adequacy and 
effectiveness. We have a responsibility to review those arrangements. 

12 Our work is structured around four key elements, as defined in the Code of Audit 
Practice:

 financial standing; 

 systems of internal financial controls; 

 standards of financial conduct and the prevention and detection of fraud and 
corruption; and 

 the legality of transactions. 

13 Table 3 provides a summary of findings for each area. 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 28



Interim Audit Report Detailed report 9

Chorley Borough Council 

Table 3 Assessment of financial aspects of corporate 
governance

The Council has adequate arrangements in place to discharge its responsibilities. 

Area Summary of findings Conclusion 

Financial 
standing

The Council has adequate 
arrangements in terms of: 

 setting a balanced budget and 
capital programme; 

 financial monitoring and 
reporting;

 meeting financial targets; and 

 financial reserves. 

The Council has put in place 
adequate arrangements to 
ensure its financial standing 
is soundly based. 

Systems of 
internal
financial
control

The Council has adequate 
arrangements in terms of: 

 monitoring financial systems; 

 Internal Audit; and 

 risk identification and 
management.

However, there is scope to further 
embed risk management into 
financial management and 
partnership arrangements. 

The Council has put in place 
adequate arrangements to 
ensure it has adequate and 
effective systems of internal 
financial control. 

Standards
of financial 
conduct and 
the
prevention
and
detection of 
fraud and 
corruption

The Council has adequate 
arrangements in terms of: 

 ethical framework; 

 governance arrangements; 

 treasury management 
arrangements; and 

 preventing and detecting fraud 
and corruption. 

The Council has put in place 
adequate arrangements to 
maintain proper standards 
of financial conduct and to 
prevent and detect fraud 
and corruption. However, 
arrangements need to be 
more proactive as supported 
by an appropriate 
whistleblowing policy and 
awareness training. 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 29



10 Interim Audit Report Detailed report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Area Summary of findings Conclusion 

However, arrangements could be 
strengthened further in the 
following areas: 

 promoting awareness of 
conduct, ethical standards and 
fraud and corruption issues for 
officers and members; 

 reviewing the adequacy of 
policies and practices to 
ensure compliance with 
statutory and other guidance 
(Audit Committee function); 

 updating the constitution on 
the Council website; 

 developing and adopting an 
approved whistleblowing 
policy; and 

 monitoring and testing of the 
operation of the 
CIPFA/SOLACE framework by 
members.

Legality of 
transactions

The Council has adequate 
arrangements in terms of: 

 clarity of roles and 
responsibilities;

 consideration of legality within 
the decision-making process; 
and

 considering the impact of new 
legislation. 

The Council has put in place 
adequate arrangements to 
ensure the legality of 
transactions that may have 
a financial consequence. 

Recommendations

R8 Integrate risk management into financial management and partnership 
working arrangements.  

R9 Introduce arrangements for the Audit Committee or other forum to review all 
policies and practices to ensure compliance with statutory guidance. 

R10 Review arrangements to ensure that the Council website is updated to 
include revisions to the constitution. 

R11 Develop and adopt an approved whistleblowing policy, which is support by 
adequate member and officer ethical standards awareness training. 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 30



Interim Audit Report Detailed report 11

Chorley Borough Council 

Internal Audit 

14 Internal Audit is an assurance function that primarily provides an independent and 
objective opinion to the organisation on the control environment comprising risk 
management, control and governance by evaluating its effectiveness in achieving 
the organisation’s objectives.  

15 Our review has assessed the Council's arrangements against standards for an 
effective Internal Audit service as outlined in the CIPFA Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit in Local Government across the following areas: 

 scope; 

 independence; 

 audit committee; 

 relationships; 

 staff, training and development; 

 audit strategy; 

 management of audit assignments; 

 due professional care; 

 reporting; and 

 quality assurance. 

16 The Internal Audit function is effective across all of the CIPFA Code of Practice 
areas and meets the standard. Only one exception is the Code requires the
Head of Internal Audit to make provision to form an opinion where key systems 
are being operated by other organisations on behalf of the audited body. 
Arrangements to do this in relation to those elements of the payroll system which 
are operated by Blackpool Borough Council are inadequate. 

Recommendation

R12 Review arrangements for the Audit and Risk Manager to form an 
opinion on those elements of the payroll system operated by 
Blackpool Borough Council. 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 31



1
2

In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it
 R

e
p

o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o

w
 

2
 =

 M
e
d

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

C
o

re
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

7
R

1
 R

u
n
 t

ri
a
l 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 o

n
 a

 
m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 

2
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

Y
e
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0

6
 

7
 

R
2
 W

h
e
re

 f
e
e
d
e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 p

o
s
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

M
A

S
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t:

 
re

la
te

d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
a
re

 r
e
c
o
n
c
ile

d
 o

n
 a

 
m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

; 

 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 
a
re

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 

th
is

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
; 

 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 

b
y
 a

 s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
r;

 a
n
d
 

 
u
n
re

c
o
n
c
ile

d
 i
te

m
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 

2
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

Y
e
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0

6
 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 32



In
te

ri
m

 A
u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 1

3

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o

w
 

2
 =

 M
e
d

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

7
 

R
3
 E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
n
k
 

re
c
o
n

c
ili

a
ti
o
n

 i
s
: 

 
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

r;
 a

n
d
 

 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
e
n
io

r 
o

ff
ic

e
r.

3
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

Y
e
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0

6
 

7
 

R
4
 T

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
ls

, 
e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t:
 

 
a
ll 

jo
u
rn

a
ls

 a
re

 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
; 

 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
; 

a
n
d

 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 n

o
te

s
 a

re
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 

jo
u
rn

a
ls

.

3
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 
D

is
a
g
re

e
 o

n
 j
o
u
rn

a
ls

 a
s
 

c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
to

ry
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 

b
u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

.

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
6
 

7
R

5
 R

e
v
ie

w
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 M

A
S

 o
n
 

a
 m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 

2
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

Y
e
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0

6
 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 33



1
4

In
te

ri
m

 A
u

d
it
 R

e
p

o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o

w
 

2
 =

 M
e
d

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

8
 

R
6
 F

o
r 

th
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
a
s
h
 l
im

it
e
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 b

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
: 

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
; 

 
re

v
ie

w
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

; 
a

n
d

 

 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
ta

ff
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 

in
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

re
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 t

ra
in

e
d
. 

2
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

Y
e
s
 

N
o
n
e
  

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

8
R

7
 E

x
p

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
lo

s
e

d
o

w
n

 
ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 
k
e
y
 

is
s
u
e

s
.

2
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

Y
e
s
 

N
o
n
e
  

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

1
0

R
8

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

 r
is

k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

to
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

.

2
 

G
a

rr
y
 B

a
rc

la
y
 

A
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

Y
e
s
 

N
o
n
e
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 34



In
te

ri
m

 A
u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 1

5

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
n

o
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o

w
 

2
 =

 M
e
d

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

1
0

 
R

9
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

fo
ru

m
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
.

2
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
-c

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

O
n
g
o
in

g

1
0
 

R
1

0
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 i
s
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

re
v
is

io
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
. 

1
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

Y
e
s
 

N
o
n
e
  

M
a
y
 2

0
0
6
 

a
n
d

O
n
g
o
in

g

1
0

R
1
1
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 a

d
o
p
t 

a
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 w

h
is

tl
e
b
lo

w
in

g
 

p
o
lic

y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
y
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 

o
ff
ic

e
r 

e
th

ic
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
. 

3
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

L
y
o

n
s
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

L
e
g
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Y
e
s
 

N
o
n
e
  

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6

1
1

 
R

1
2

 R
e

v
ie

w
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

to
 

fo
rm

 a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
o
s
e
 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

a
y
ro

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
 o

p
e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 

B
la

c
k
p
o
o
l 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

2
 

G
a

rr
y
 B

a
rc

la
y
 

A
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

Y
e
s
 

 
 

Agenda Item 4bAgenda Page 35



Agenda Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Detailed Report 

March 2006 

Opinion Memorandum

Chorley Borough Council 

Audit 2004-2005 

Agenda Item 4cAgenda Page 37



© Audit Commission 2006 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 020 7828 1212  Fax: 020 7976 6187  Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

External audit is an essential element in the process of accountability for public 
money and makes an important contribution to the stewardship of public resources 
and the corporate governance of public services. 

Audit in the public sector is underpinned by three fundamental principles: 

 auditors are appointed independently from the bodies being audited; 

 the scope of auditors' work is extended to cover not only the audit of financial 
statements but also value for money and the conduct of public business; and 

 auditors may report aspects of their work widely to the public and other key 
stakeholders.

The duties and powers of auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are set out 
in the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Local Government Act 1999 and the 
Commission's statutory Code of Audit Practice. Under the Code of Audit Practice, 
appointed auditors are also required to comply with the current professional 
standards issued by the independent Auditing Practices Board.

Appointed auditors act quite separately from the Commission and in meeting their 
statutory responsibilities are required to exercise their professional judgement 
independently of both the Commission and the audited body. 

Status of our reports to the Council 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the 
Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the 
audited body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to
members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. 
Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

 any member or officer in their individual capacity; or

 any third party.  

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0845 056 0566. 

Agenda Item 4cAgenda Page 38



Opinion Memorandum Contents  3

Chorley Borough Council 

Contents

Summary report 4

Introduction 4

Background 4

Main conclusions 5

Detailed report 6

Opinion audit findings 6

Other opinion related issues 7

Disclosure requirements 8

Acknowledgements 8

Appendix 1 – Action plan 9

Agenda Item 4cAgenda Page 39



4 Opinion Memorandum  Summary report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Summary report 

Introduction

1 Our responsibility, as the Council’s external auditors, is to form an independent 
view on the accounts and issue our opinion as to whether they present fairly the 
financial position of the Council.

2 We plan the audit in accordance with the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit 
Practice in order to obtain reasonable assurance that the accounts are free from 
material misstatement, whether from fraud or other irregularity or error. We also 
provide assurance that the accounts comply with statutory and other proper 
accounting practices. 

3 The purpose of this report is to summarise the matters arising from the audit of 
the Council’s accounts for the year ended 31 March 2005. 

Background

4 SAS 610 requires auditors to report to those charged with governance, as distinct 
from management, certain matters before they can give an opinion on the 
financial statements. 

5 Auditors should communicate to those charged with governance: 

 expected modifications to the auditors' report; 

 unadjusted misstatements; 

 material weaknesses in the accounting and internal control systems identified 
during the audit; 

 their views about the qualitative aspects of the entity's accounting practices 
and financial reporting; and 

 matters specifically required by other Auditing Standards to be communicated 
to those charged with governance; and on any other relevant matters relating 
to the audit. 

6 We agreed with the Council that, the communications required by SAS 610 in 
advance of issuing our report on the annual financial statements of the Council 
was not required as: 

 all non-trifling and material errors identified during the course of the audit 
have been amended; 

 no material weaknesses in the accounting and internal control systems have 
been identified;

 no other accounting or auditing standards matters need to be reported; and  

 an unqualified opinion has been issued.  

Agenda Item 4cAgenda Page 40



Opinion Memorandum Summary report  5

Chorley Borough Council 

Main conclusions 

7 A number of issues arose during the course of the opinion audit with one material 
error and a few non-trifling errors, which required amendments to the statement 
of accounts. The amended accounts were re-approved by the Accounts 
Committee on 21 September 2005. As a result of all non-trifling errors being 
corrected no SAS 610 report, to those charged with governance, was necessary. 

8 The key issues arising from the opinion audit are summarised in the next section 
with the matters arising set out in Appendix 1 as a detailed action plan. Overall, a 
reasonable set of accounts was presented for audit with future improvements 
largely needed to facilitate early opinion sign off in accordance with the Whole of 
Government Accounts agenda. 

Agenda Item 4cAgenda Page 41



6 Opinion Memorandum  Detailed report

Chorley Borough Council 

Detailed report 

Opinion audit findings 

9 Table 1 below outlines the material and non-trifling changes to the accounts 
along with the rationale for the adjustment. The Director of Finance has reported 
the key changes arising from the audited accounts to the Accounts Committee on 
21 September 2005. 

Table 1 Material and non-trifling changes 

Amendment Rationale for adjustment 

£2,464,070 of grant used to fund 
expenditure on deferred charges has 
been credited directly to the CFA without 
going through the CRA. 

Grant used to fund expenditure on 
deferred charges required a debit 
appropriation from CRA and credit 
against the net cost of services on 
the CRA. Nil impact on the bottom 
line of the CRA. 

£818,000 of HRA expenditure included 
in the net cost of services section of the 
CRA relates to the major repairs 
reserve.

This amount is now included in the 
appropriations section of the CRA to 
comply with SORP accounting 
requirements.

Opening balance for deferred charges 
included £194,000 of premia on debt 
rescheduling, which has been 
reclassified as long-term debtors. The 
premia on debt rescheduling should be 
written off to the CRA or use capital 
receipts to avoid the impact on CRA. 

Latest AC technical guidance has 
been followed by the Council with 
the debt premia set against existing 
capital receipts. 

Pensions interest costs and expected 
return on pensions assets with a net 
position of £281,000 are not disclosed in 
the net operating expenditure section of 
the CRA. 

This has been amended on the face 
of the CRA to ensure compliance 
with
FRS 17 and the SORP 2004. 

£418,000 of amortised intangible fixed 
assets have been debited to the net cost 
of services within the CRA and then 
written off to the CFA as an 
appropriation from the CRA. 

These amortisation charges have 
been amended to treat them on the 
same basis as depreciation on fixed 
assets by making a matching debit 
and credit made to AMRA. 

Agenda Item 4cAgenda Page 42



Opinion Memorandum Detailed report 7

Chorley Borough Council 

Amendment Rationale for Adjustment 

£673,000 of housing pooled capital 
receipts have been paid to the ODPM 
directly from the Usable Capital Receipts 
Reserve.

These receipts required a CRA debit 
to net operating expenditure, with a 
credit to CRA appropriations to 
negate the impact on the General 
Fund bottom line. 

Other opinion related issues 

10 During the course of the audit, a number of other opinion related issues arose, 
which need to be addressed to facilitate earlier closedown and opinion sign off to 
meet the challenging Whole of Government Accounts timetable.

11 The Council did present an early set of accounts for audit as approved by the 
Accounts Committee on 5 July 2005. The final accounts working paper checklist 
was not completed on commencement of the audit and although most working 
papers had been provided on a timely basis some delays did occur. 

12 A robust Statement on Internal Control (SIC) evidence gathering process has 
been introduced. Although, Internal Audit will need to ensure timely reviews of 
key financial systems to inform SIC assurances and assist in compliance with the 
International Standards on Auditing 315.

13 A change in the bad debts provision for council tax calculation had a material 
reduction in the provision year on year, which has been justified by the Council as 
over-provision in previous years. A note has been added to the Collection Fund to 
explain the change in provision calculation and we strongly recommend close 
monitoring of the provision levels to manage the risk of any unexpected impact on 
the CRA. 

14 The register of interests for members has not been reviewed as part of the 
process for identifying related party transactions and no equivalent officer register 
exists. However, a review of the members register of interests and the officer's 
gifts and hospitality register has not identified any significant items worthy of 
disclosure under FRS 8.   

Agenda Item 4cAgenda Page 43



8 Opinion Memorandum  Detailed report

Chorley Borough Council 

Disclosure requirements 

15 During the course of the audit, a number of changes to the accounts were 
agreed, but these were presentational issues to help clarify the content of the 
accounts and to ensure full compliance with the Statement of Recommended 
Practice 2004 (SORP) and to assist in preparation for the Whole of Government 
Accounts agenda. 

Acknowledgements

16 We would like to thank officers for their assistance during the 2004/05 financial 
year opinion audit. 

Agenda Item 4cAgenda Page 44



O
p
in

io
n
 M

e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

9

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1
 =

 L
o

w
 

2
 =

 M
e
d

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

R
1
 I

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 p
o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

o
n
ly

 
c
a
p
it
a
lis

in
g
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 w
h
ic

h
 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 C

IP
F

A
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
. 

2
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

Y
e
s
 

A
g
re

e
 t

o
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 b

e
fo

re
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
0
5
/0

6
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

R
2
 E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
r 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t 
is

 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

c
lo

s
e
d
o
w

n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

3
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll/

 
M

ic
h
a
e
l

J
a
c
k
s
o
n

Y
e
s
 

A
g
re

e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
lo

s
e
d
o
w

n
. 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

R
3
 I

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 e

a
rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
k
e
y
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
th

e
 S

IC
 a

n
d
 I

S
A

 3
1
5
. 

3
 

G
a

rr
y
 B

a
rc

la
y
 

A
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

Y
e
s
 

A
g
re

e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 I

S
A

 w
o
rk

. 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
6
 

R
4
 M

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a

d
e
q
u
a
c
y
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

a
d
 d

e
b
ts

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

. 

3
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

Y
e
s
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

a
d
 d

e
b
ts

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 

b
a
s
is

.

O
n
g
o
in

g
.

R
5
 I

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

n
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

' 
re

g
is

te
r 

o
f 

in
te

re
s
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 t

o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

re
g
is

te
rs

 f
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
F

R
S

 8
 

re
la

te
d
 p

a
rt

y
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

3
 

G
a
ry

 H
a
ll/

 
R

o
s
e
m

a
ry

L
y
o

n
s
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

L
e
g
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Y
e
s
 

A
g
re

e
. 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

Agenda Item 4cAgenda Page 45



Agenda Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Detailed Report 

March 2006 

Performance
Management

Chorley Borough Council 

Audit 2004-2005 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 47



© Audit Commission 2006 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 020 7828 1212  Fax: 020 7976 6187 Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

External audit is an essential element in the process of accountability for public 
money and makes an important contribution to the stewardship of public 
resources and the corporate governance of public services. 

Audit in the public sector is underpinned by three fundamental principles: 

 auditors are appointed independently from the bodies being audited; 

 the scope of auditors' work is extended to cover not only the audit of financial 
statements but also value for money and the conduct of public business; and 

 auditors may report aspects of their work widely to the public and other key 
stakeholders.

The duties and powers of auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are set out 
in the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Local Government Act 1999 and the 
Commission's statutory Code of Audit Practice. Under the Code of Audit Practice, 
appointed auditors are also required to comply with the current professional 
standards issued by the independent Auditing Practices Board.

Appointed auditors act quite separately from the Commission and in meeting their 
statutory responsibilities are required to exercise their professional judgement 
independently of both the Commission and the audited body. 

Status of our reports to the Council 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the 
Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the 
audited body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to
non-executive directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use 
of the audited body. Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

 any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

 any third party.  

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0845 056 0566. 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 48



Performance Management Contents  3

Chorley Borough Council 

Contents

Summary report 4

Introduction and background 4

Audit approach 4

Overall findings and conclusions 5

The way forward 8

Detailed report 9

Detailed findings and areas for improvement 9

Clear vision 9

Leadership 10

Creating a performance orientated culture 12

Customer and citizen focus 13

People management 14

Planning and service review 15

Performance measurement, monitoring and reporting 17

Appendix 1 – Feed back from staff focus groups 20

What is performance management? What do you understand by the term? 20

Do you know what the corporate priorities are/ what they mean? 20

Performance management – strengths/areas for improvement 21

Performance measurement, monitoring and reporting 23

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 49



4 Performance Management Summary report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Summary report 

Introduction and background 

1 Organisations with effective performance management arrangements know what 
they need to do and are therefore more likely to be able to improve the services 
they provide to local people. Managing performance involves more than just 
setting up a system. It is also about getting the right culture and leadership in 
place and focusing on what matters most.

2 In 2004, Chorley Borough Council’s comprehensive performance assessment 
(CPA) found that on balance performance management weaknesses outweighed 
strengths. However, key strengths that were identified included frameworks for 
service planning, effective responses to under-performance in some areas, and 
published service standards for some services. 

3 Over the last 12 months, the Authority has demonstrated a positive response to 
CPA. The performance management issues identified as needing further 
development have been incorporated into the corporate improvement plan (CIP) 
and action is now being taken to address them.

Audit approach

4 Our work was designed to support the Authority as it further develops its 
performance management arrangements. In carrying out the review, we have 
probed specific improvement areas identified in the CIP and sought to assess the 
progress and impact that has been achieved. 

5 In carrying out our work, we have reviewed key strategies and plans as well as 
current performance management guidance, templates and unit business plans 
for 2004/05 and 2005/06. We have also undertaken a number of ‘one-to-one’ 
interviews with lead directors and service managers in Corporate Policy, Housing, 
Finance and Leisure and Cultural Services and facilitated two staff focus groups 
in order to:

 identify levers and any potential barriers to the adoption of good practice in 
performance management using the Performance Management, 
Measurement and Information good practice (PMMI) self-assessment/ 
checklists developed by the IDeA and the Audit Commission; 

 assess the level of understanding and awareness of performance 
management amongst a cross section of managers and staff; 

 assess whether there is scope to improve action planning at community, 
corporate and service plan levels, including how effectively audit and 
inspection recommendations have/are being implemented; and 

 look at how services are using performance information to measure, monitor 
and report performance.

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 50



Performance Management Summary report  5

Chorley Borough Council 

Overall findings and conclusions 

6 The Authority is continuing to take positive steps to strengthen arrangements for 
effective management, measurement and monitoring of performance. Current 
initiatives and future plans focus on the right areas in that they are aimed directly 
at identified weakness. Initiatives are generally supported by detailed action plans 
setting out clear priorities, target dates for delivery, responsible officers and 
anticipated outcomes.  

7 The need for change has already been recognised in the CIP and resources are 
being made available to support the delivery of the identified improvements. The 
‘Performance Plus’ software, once fully implemented, should help to improve the 
way the Authority measures, monitors and reports on its performance against key 
corporate and service level priorities and objectives.

8 If the Authority is to achieve the change in culture and process that it desires, a 
number of areas need further development, as outlined below. 

 Clear vision. Senior managers and leading members are now focusing more 
clearly on corporate priorities as the basis for decisions and resource 
allocation. Significant investment has been diverted into priority areas. 
However, some staff are unclear about what the Council’s vision, key 
priorities and objectives actually mean in practice and how community 
aspirations are being met. 

 A new community strategy has been developed by the Chorley LSP to act as 
an overarching framework for corporate, service and theme-specific plans for 
the Council and its other partner bodies and agencies in the LSP. The Council 
is now actively engaged in reviewing its existing corporate priorities in order to 
implement the principal elements of the new strategy so far as they can be 
addressed by the Council through the exercise of its functions. It is 
considering which elements of the strategy it will be responsible for delivering 
(either alone or in partnership) and how delivery of the strategy will be 
resourced.

 Leadership. Positive progress is being made in this area. Good performance 
is recognised and celebrated. Senior managers and members are using the 
community vision to motivate managers and staff, to engage with them in an 
open and honest way, and to gain commitment to improvement. The 
‘improve4 u’ initiative is in place and has been well-received by staff.
However, there is a need to better communicate and publicise to staff the 
changes being made as a result of the issues identified in staff surveys. 

 The Authority has signed up to the North West Employer’s Charter for Elected 
Member Development and a Member Development and Leadership 
Programme/training is in place. So far, this has not been well-attended and 
some members have yet to complete their development questionnaires. 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 51



6 Performance Management Summary report 

Chorley Borough Council 

 Creating a performance orientated culture. A more identifiable performance 
orientation is emerging, particularly in the context of the new community 
strategy. Performance management and improvement are integrated with 
other Council processes, and whilst the majority of managers see it as an 
integral part of their job there are still a minority of managers and staff who 
still see them as an ‘add-on’. There is a lack of consensus among staff about 
what performance management involves and, consequently, what a 
performance orientated culture should look and feel like. This suggests that a 
performance orientated culture is not yet fully embedded across the Authority. 
Further work is needed. 

 Customer and citizen focus. A strong customer-focused approach has 
developed, with service standards increasingly being set following 
consultation with customers and other service users. Performance monitoring 
and review includes assessment based on citizen and customer feedback 
and consultation, and whilst performance is generally very strong, the focus 
on outcomes is not yet consistent in all service areas.

 People management. Weaknesses identified in the CPA and the Audit 
Commission people management and capacity reports have been acted on 
swiftly. An HR strategy and supporting business plan are now in place and, 
although many initiatives are very recent, good progress is being made with 
positive feedback from managers and staff on the initiatives already 
introduced. A comprehensive performance, development and review process 
is in place supported by a new competency-based framework. Revised 
guidance has been put in place to support managers in progress and 
development reviews. 

 Planning and service review. Strengthened performance management 
arrangements are underpinned by corporate service and theme specific plans 
that seek to integrate corporate service and financial planning processes. 
Peer challenge is adding value to the process. However, unit business plans 
do not consistently make clear links between the Council’s three corporate 
priorities, individual service objectives and performance indicators/targets. 
The resource requirements and/or opportunity costs of specific actions now 
need to be fully quantified.  

 Some key tasks within plans do not follow ‘SMART’ principles, and the 
narrative given in Annual Updates does not consistently report the actual 
progress achieved or explain the reasons for slippage. The use of ‘ongoing’ or 
‘to be completed’ makes it hard to assess what progress has actually been 
achieved or when service improvements will be delivered. The Audit 
Commission will endeavour to provide some good practice examples of how 
this has been achieved in other authorities. 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 52



Performance Management Summary report  7

Chorley Borough Council 

 Performance measurement, monitoring and reporting. The Authority has 
defined the outcomes it needs to deliver in order to realise the community 
vision, and these outcomes are owned and understood by nearly all the 
managers and staff we surveyed or interviewed. Nevertheless, existing 
measures of performance do not fully reflect the Authority’s objectives. 
Managers and staff do not have a clear understanding of how the Authority is 
performing overall against the three corporate priorities or about which areas 
are improving or worsening.

9 There is a need to increase the number of local PIs that measure outputs and 
outcomes for local citizens. The introduction of ‘Performance Plus’ and the 
identification of a basket of key indicators should help in this regard, but the 
Authority needs to address concerns raised in the 2003/04 PI audit around the 
quality of data. Furthermore, target setting is not yet being used consistently to 
drive continuous service improvement.

Recommendations

10 We have made a number of recommendations for the Council to consider. These 
are made in the context that in many cases the Council through its improvement 
planning process had identified these matters as issues. The recommendations 
are made to ensure that there is a shared view between ourselves and the 
Council as to what still needs to be done in order for the Council to achieve its 
improvement goals. 

Recommendations

R1 The Council should continue to ensure that its vision and objectives drive 
performance improvement by: 

clearly defining what the Council’s vision, corporate priorities and 
objectives mean in practice and disseminating to managers and 
staff;

reviewing existing corporate, service and theme specific plans to 
ensure that they fit with the new community strategy; and 

developing and monitoring action/implementation plans for all key 
corporate strategies.

R2 Carry out an impact assessment covering the short, medium and  
longer-term impact on the Council of the capacity, financial and other 
implications of the assessment of the new community strategy. 

R3 To help embed a strong performance culture: 

consider what actions are required to address the issues raised by 
managers and staff during the course of this review; and 

more clearly communicate performance against the Council’s 
priorities and objectives to managers and staff.

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 53



8 Performance Management Summary report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Recommendations

R4 Further strengthen service and financial planning processes by: 

making clearer links between corporate priorities, individual service 
objectives and PIs/targets within and between unit business plans;  

ensuring that unit business plans consistently identify the resources 
required to deliver key tasks; and 

defining key tasks using ‘SMART’ principles, including target dates 
and clear identification of how services will be improved by 
delivering the identified actions. 

R5 Continue to develop a mix of performance indicators that weight the 
balance of importance to those PIs that contribute to the delivery of the 
corporate priorities, and set targets consistently to drive continuous 
service improvement. 

R6 Improve the quality of commentary within quarterly performance updates 
to cover progress, slippage and reasons for under-performance.

R7 Explore ways to improve take-up of the Member Development and 
Leadership Programme and remind members of the importance of 
completing the Member Development Questionnaire. 

The way forward 

11 The new corporate strategy has six strategic objectives, five of which mirror the 
community strategy priorities. In moving to a new corporate strategy, the Council 
has addressed in part some of the recommendations The Council’s sixth strategic 
objective is to ensure it is a performing organisation, and a key project for 
2006/07 will be to embed effective performance and risk management. This 
project will result in a strategy and action plan and the recommendations 
contained within this report will be integrated by June 2006. 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 54



Performance Management Detailed report  9

Chorley Borough Council 

Detailed report 

Detailed findings and areas for improvement 

12 PMMI research confirms that the culture of an organisation (the shared beliefs 
and the written and unwritten policies and procedures that determine the way in 
which the organisation and its staff behave and solve problems) is crucial to 
understanding how to make performance management effective and is therefore 
a key factor in helping improve public services.  

13 A self-assessment checklist has been developed by the IDeA and the Audit 
Commission to help local authorities to define where they are in developing a 
performance-orientated culture. We asked a cross section of managers and staff 
to complete the self-assessment in Chorley so that we could assess the progress 
being made in this area. The main levers and potential barriers for the Authority 
to address if it is to develop a more performance orientated culture and improve 
performance management arrangements are set out below. Responses from the 
two staff focus groups are set out in Appendix 1. 

Clear vision 

Senior managers and leading members are more clearly focusing on corporate 
priorities as the basis for decisions and resource allocation, with significant 
investment being diverted into priority areas. However, there is no consensus 
amongst managers and staff about what the Council’s vision, key priorities and 
objectives actually mean in practice. 

A new community strategy has been developed following extensive consultation 
with key local strategic stakeholders. The Council recognises that it needs to 
review its existing priorities to ensure consistency with the revised community 
strategy. The need to define the actions it will and will not be responsible for 
delivering (either alone or in partnership) from within the community strategy and 
agree a funding strategy is accepted and will form part of the planned review later 
in 2005.

A formal risk assessment of the strategy has not yet been undertaken to help the 
Authority to assess whether it has the capacity, financial or otherwise, to deliver 
it.

Levers for the Authority to build upon 

14 A new community strategy for 2005 to 2016 has been developed through the 
LSP, following extensive consultation with key local strategic stakeholders 
(public, private, faith, community and voluntary sectors). 

15 Corporate priorities were agreed by elected members as part of the existing 
corporate strategy to guide corporate, service and theme-specific plans. 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 55



10 Performance Management Detailed report 

Chorley Borough Council 

16 Our review of cabinet minutes and reports confirms that elected members are 
more clearly focusing on corporate priorities as the basis for decisions and 
resource allocation, with significant investment being diverted into priority areas. 

17 Of the managers and staff completing the PMMI self-assessment/good practice 
checklists:

 two-thirds of staff think that the vision had been developed with all 
stakeholders including residents, service users and strategic partners
(only 8 per cent think they have not been involved); and

 58 per cent think that the Council/they have a consistently clear vision of the 
economic, social and environmental conditions the local community wants. 

Potential issues/barriers for the Authority to address 

18 It is accepted that the Council’s three corporate priorities do not yet directly align 
with the revised community strategy. The Council’s plans to review it’s corporate, 
service and financial strategies and plans later in 2005 to define which actions it 
will, and will not, be responsible for delivering (either alone or in partnership) from 
within the community strategy, and to agree a funding strategy with partners. A 
formal risk assessment of the community strategy will need to be undertaken to 
assess whether there is sufficient capacity, financial or otherwise, to deliver it. 

19 Evidence from the staff focus groups and interviews suggests that managers and 
staff are generally unclear about what the Council’s three corporate priorities 
actually mean in practice. 

20 Two-thirds of staff completing the PMMI self-assessment/good practice checklists 
did not think there is ongoing dialogue between the Authority and the public to 
ensure priorities continue to focus on the needs of local communities. 

Leadership

The Council’s response to Audit Commission/inspection recommendations is 
good and there is strong commitment to improve amongst managers and staff. 
Good performance is recognised and celebrated. Senior managers and members 
are seen to be using the community vision to motivate managers and staff, to 
engage with them in an open and honest way, and to gain commitment to 
improvement.

Staff surveys covering morale, commitment, attitudes etc are conducted and have 
been generally well-received with good levels of feedback and coaching from 
senior managers, although the actions taken as a result of the surveys are not 
always evident to staff.  

The Council has signed up to the North West Employer’s Charter for Elected 
Member Development and a Member Development and Leadership Programme/ 
training is in place. However, this has not been well-attended and not all 
members have completed the development questionnaires to help further support 
the strategic leadership capacity of the Council. 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 56



Performance Management Detailed report  11

Chorley Borough Council 

Levers for the Authority to build upon 

21 Of the managers and staff completing the PMMI self-assessment/good practice 
checklists:

 92 per cent think that good performance is recognised and celebrated in their 
service/department;

 nearly 60 per cent think that senior managers and members use the 
community vision to motivate staff, gain commitment to improvement and 
engage with staff in an open and honest way. A further 17 per cent think that 
this happens for some or part of the time; and 

 60 per cent think that staff surveys covering morale, commitment, attitudes 
etc are conducted, and there are high levels of feedback and coaching from 
managers in their service/department.

22 Our follow-up review on democratic renewal and housing repairs and 
maintenance confirmed that good progress has been made by the Authority in 
responding to Audit Commission/inspection recommendations to strengthen 
existing arrangements. 

23 A Member Development and Leadership Programme is now in place and 
includes Member Training Needs Analysis. The Authority has signed up to the 
North West Employer’s Charter for Elected Member Development.  

24 Core Brief and Team Brief are generally well-received by staff and seen as a key 
mechanism for understanding what the Authority/service/department is doing and 
the progress being made. 

25 The ‘improve4u’ initiative is in place and feedback from the staff focus groups 
suggests that this initiative has generally been welcomed by staff. 

Potential issues/barriers for the Authority to address 

26 Of the staff completing the PMMI self-assessment/good practice checklists, half 
said they did not see any changes as a result of staff surveys. A further
25 per cent did not know. 

27 In our questionnaire survey of 20 elected members, 42 per cent did not think that 
chairs and vice chairs are providing the right leadership and direction. 

28 The Member Development and Leadership Programme/training is still not  
well-attended and not all members have returned the Member Development 
Questionnaire. ‘One-to-one’ interviews are available for members but, again,
take-up is variable.

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 57



12 Performance Management Detailed report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Creating a performance orientated culture 

A more identifiable performance orientation is emerging in some areas of the 
Council, particularly in the context of the community strategy. However, not all 
managers and staff have yet developed a sense of responsibility for the 
performance of the Authority and accountability for results is not consistently 
clear.

Performance management and improvement are integrated with other Council 
processes although some managers and staff still see it as an ‘add-on’. A general 
consensus amongst managers and staff about what performance management 
is/means and consequently what a performance-orientated culture should 
look/feel like is not yet embedded. 

Levers for the Authority to build upon 

29 Of the managers and staff completing the PMMI self-assessment: 

 92 per cent see a direct connection between what they do and how it benefits 
their service/department and the wider community; 

 three-quarters of staff feel that their manager(s) facilitate discussions at 
meetings on how performance can be improved, invite questions from them 
and design meetings to encourage two-way communication, problem solving, 
challenge and support;

 two-thirds think that managers focus a lot of energy and emphasis on setting 
what is done in the context of the Council’s community strategy/corporate 
priorities. Only 8 per cent of staff did not think that this feature was evident 
within the Authority; 

 two-thirds think that performance management and improvement are 
integrated with other Council processes and are not treated as an ‘add-on’; 
and

 more than half (59 per cent) think that new ideas are constantly sought, tried 
and reviewed. 

Potential issues/barriers for the Authority to address 

30 There is no consensus amongst managers and staff about what performance 
management is/means and what a performance orientated culture should look/ 
feel like.

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 58



Performance Management Detailed report  13

Chorley Borough Council 

31 Of the managers and staff completing the PMMI self-assessment: 

 only 25 per cent of staff think there is a sense of responsibility for the 
performance of the Authority and that accountability for results is clear; 

 only half think that the Authority is consistently open to external challenge and 
willing to tackle tough decisions and difficult problems; and 

 42 per cent think that the Council’s leaders are committed to continual 
improvement for only some or part of the time. 

Customer and citizen focus 

There is evidence in some services that the Council is developing a more 
customer-focused approach, with services and standards set following 
consultation with service users. However, in some areas, there are few targets 
and other measures of performance that have been developed with service users 
and that focus on outcomes and outputs for local people. 

A new community strategy has been developed following extensive consultation 
and involvement with strategic partners and local residents, and an LSP and 
Citizen’s Panel have been in place for a number of years. Performance 
monitoring and review includes assessment based on citizen and customer 
feedback and consultation.

Managers and staff have raised concerns around arrangements for public 
participation and access to services particularly in relation to representations to 
Planning Committee. 

Levers for the Authority to build upon 

32 The Authority’s performance is set out in the annual best value performance plan 
and performance information is also available on the Council’s website and in 
other publications, such as ‘Tenants News and Views’. 

33 A new community strategy has been developed following extensive consultation 
and involvement with strategic partners, local residents etc. An LSP and Citizens 
Panel have been in place for a number of years. 

34 Performance monitoring and review includes assessment based on citizen and 
customer feedback and consultation – eg through satisfaction surveys, Tenants 
Forum, Tenant Participation and relations officers in Housing, and Tenants News 
and Views. 

35 Implementation of the ‘one-stop shop’, and developments in e-government and 
electronic service delivery demonstrate a move towards a more  
customer-orientated focus.

36 Evidence from our follow-up of recommendations made in the Audit Commission 
inspection report on housing repairs and maintenance shows that good progress 
has been made in addressing the issues raised, and clear standards have been 
set out following consultation with residents. Clients know what standards of 
service they can expect.

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 59



14 Performance Management Detailed report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Potential issues/barriers for the Authority to address 

37 Despite being considered good practice nationally, members of the public are not 
able to make representations to meetings of the Planning Committee.

38 In our questionnaire survey of 20 elected members: 

 83 per cent do not think that members of the public and other councillors are 
able to participate in meetings of the cabinet; and

 half do not think that Overview and Scrutiny is effective in safeguarding the 
interests of local people.

39 Managers and staff in the two focus groups have raised concerns around:

 communication and engagement with local residents – existing
‘two-page spreads’ in the Chorley Guardian are not felt to be useful for local 
residents because they do not present a clear view of what is improving and 
what is not improving;

 performance monitoring and review – this tends to focus on quantitative 
measures rather than qualitative. ‘We measure the number of visits made but 
we don’t measure anything to do with quality/enjoyment. We don’t monitor 
repeat visits for instance’; and

 facilities for people with disabilities, for example access to the Council 
Chamber.

People management 

Weaknesses identified in the CPA and the Audit Commission people 
management and capacity reports have been acted on swiftly. An HR strategy 
and supporting business plan are now in place. There is a comprehensive PDR 
process supported by a new competency based framework which includes 
assessment of learning/training and development needs.

These are relatively recent developments and as such have not yet had time to 
bed down fully. Our initial assessment is that good progress is being made with 
positive feedback from managers and staff on the initiatives introduced.

Levers for the Authority to build upon 

40 Weaknesses identified in the CPA and the Audit Commission people 
management and capacity reports have been acted on swiftly. An HR strategy 
and supporting business plan are now in place and there is monthly review of 
progress with the Executive Director and Head of HR. A draft learning and 
development strategy has been developed and is currently being consulted on 
with trade unions.

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 60



Performance Management Detailed report  15

Chorley Borough Council 

41 A comprehensive performance, development and review process is in place and 
is supported by a new competency-based framework. The framework includes 
annual ‘one-to-one’ performance appraisal of all managers and staff, the 
assessment of learning/training and development needs, and the setting of 
individual personal objectives linked to team, service and corporate objectives. 

42 Revised guidance has been developed for use by managers and staff to support 
the PDR process. The guidance is easy to read and informative and includes 
‘how to’ examples. Formal systems and processes are in place to identify  
high-achievers, under-achievers and to flag-up capability issues and monitor/ 
report on sickness and turnover. Staff feedback in the two focus groups we held 
was generally extremely positive about the new PDR process and competency 
based framework. 

Potential issues/barriers for the Authority to address 

43 In its HR strategy, the Authority recognises its inability to provide ‘relevant and 
valid management information’ and a ‘lack of technological advances’ as potential 
barriers to improvement. 

44 During interview, some managers and staff have raised concerns about the 
Authority’s capacity to deliver as well as the level of resources being made 
available to support the myriad of strategies and plans currently being developed 
or implemented.

Planning and service review 

Strengthened performance management arrangements are underpinned by 
corporate, service and theme specific plans that seek to integrate corporate 
service and financial planning processes. Peer challenge is adding value to the 
process. However, links between the Council’s three corporate priorities, 
individual service objectives and PIs/targets are not consistently clear in unit 
business plans. In addition, some of the resource requirements/opportunity costs 
have not been quantified.  

Key tasks included in plans are not consistently ‘SMART’ and some target dates 
are not easily measurable. The narrative given under progress in annual updates 
does not consistently report the actual progress achieved or explain the reasons 
for slippage or revised delivery dates. The use of ‘ongoing’ or ‘to be completed’ 
makes it hard to assess what progress has actually been achieved or when 
service improvements will be delivered. 

Levers for the Authority to build upon 

45 A strengthened performance management framework has recently been 
introduced and training provided to all managers and staff. ‘How to’ guides on 
performance management have been developed (including templates) to help 
ensure consistency in coverage and approach. These are available for use by 
managers/staff. The guides are easy to read and incorporate recognised good 
practice.

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 61



16 Performance Management Detailed report 

Chorley Borough Council 

46 Our review of 2004/05 and 2005/06 unit business plans confirms that the 
corporate guidance has generally been followed with a high level of internal 
consistency evident between the plans produced. An internal process of
‘peer challenge’ has been introduced to raise the quality of unit business plans. 
Our reviews of a sample of completed review checklists confirms the reviews are 
‘adding value’.

47 Of the managers and staff completing the PMMI self-assessment/good practice 
checklists:

 67 per cent of staff think that there is a corporate plan in place that identifies 
the tasks and resources necessary to achieve corporate priorities; 

 three-quarters think that corporate, service and financial plans are integrated 
within their service/department with up-to-date unit business plans in place 
that translate corporate priorities into action plans; 

 42 per cent think that resource allocation in their service/department is based 
on corporate priorities; 

 three-quarters of staff think that service and/or business plans link 
with/reference improvement reviews and action plans; 

 half think that service and/or business plans link with/reference financial and 
human resource requirements; and 

 the vast majority (83 per cent) feel that they are routinely involved in 
developing service/departmental plans and 93 per cent feel involved in setting 
targets and PIs for their service.  

Potential issues/barriers for the Authority to address 

48 Our review of 2004/05 and 2005/06 unit business plans shows that: 

 links between the Council’s three corporate priorities, individual service 
objectives and PIs and targets are unclear. This makes it difficult to see how 
services are contributing to the delivery of corporate (and service level) 
priorities and objectives; 

 not all the resource requirements/opportunity costs reflected in the plans have 
been quantified and, as such, it is difficult to see how the costs associated 
with delivering the key tasks have been reflected in the financial planning 
process;

 key tasks included in some plans are not consistently SMART and can be 
vague in what they are seeking to achieve. It is difficult therefore to 
understand how and why services will be improved by delivering the identified 
task; and

 not all target dates are easily measurable (eg, reference to ‘ongoing’) and not 
all target dates have been completed. 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 62



Performance Management Detailed report  17

Chorley Borough Council 

49 Of the staff completing the PMMI self-assessment/good practice checklists:

 one quarter do not think that resource allocation in their service/department is 
based on corporate priorities, and a further 16 per cent think these links have 
only been partially achieved; and 

 less than half of staff (42 per cent) think that service/business plans link 
with/reference training and development needs/IT plans. 

50 Action plans have been developed to support the delivery of all key Council 
strategies.

51 As reported earlier in this report, the implications of the Council’s vision and 
priorities are not clearly understood by all managers and staff.  

Performance measurement, monitoring and 
reporting

The Council has defined the outcomes it needs to achieve to realise the 
community vision, and these are owned and understood by most managers and 
staff. Nevertheless, existing measures of performance do not fully reflect the 
Authority’s objectives. Managers and staff do not have a clear understanding of 
how the Authority is performing overall against the three corporate priorities or 
about which areas are improving or worsening.

There is a need to increase the number of local PIs that measure outputs and 
outcomes for local citizens. The introduction of ‘Performance Plus’ and the 
identification of a basket of key indicators should help in this regard, but the 
Authority needs to address concerns raised in the 2004/05 PI audit around the 
quality of data. Furthermore, target setting is not yet being used consistently to 
drive continuous service improvement.

Levers for the Authority to build upon 

52 ‘Performance Plus’ has recently been introduced by the Authority to better 
measure, monitor and report on its performance. In addition, a basket of key PIs 
and targets is being identified to enable managers and elected members to focus 
on what is most important, and to highlight areas of under-performance against 
key priorities and objectives. 

53 There is regular, routine reporting at unit, service, department and corporate 
levels. Key performance indicators are reported in the monthly management team 
monitoring report. This includes explanations for identified poor performance.   

54 Core and Team Brief, monthly one-to-ones with Executive Directors and with the 
Executive Member for Effective Service Delivery and quarterly reports to 
executive cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny Committee are cited as positive 
developments helping managers and staff to focus on priority areas set out in the 
CIP and service unit business plans.

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 63



18 Performance Management Detailed report 

Chorley Borough Council 

55 In our questionnaire survey of 20 elected members, two-thirds thought that 
performance reporting had improved, with reports clearer, more succinct and 
providing the information needed to make decisions. 

56 Of the managers and staff completing the PMMI self-assessment/good practice 
checklists:

 the vast majority (92 per cent) think that the outcomes the Authority needs to 
achieve to deliver the community vision have been defined, owned and 
understood by senior/line managers. Two-thirds of staff also think that they 
also own and understand the outcomes needed; 

 83 per cent think that they/their manager are accountable for performance in 
their service/department; and 

 three-quarters think that poor performance results in action being taken to 
improve in their service/department. 

Potential issues/barriers for the Authority to address 

57 None of the managers and staff we surveyed or interviewed had a clear 
understanding of how the Authority is performing overall (eg against the three 
corporate priorities) or could say which areas were improving, staying the same 
or worsening. Understanding was generally better at the service level. 

58 Our 2004/05 PI audit found: 

 49 per cent of PIs to be inaccurate, with many errors relating to a failure to 
comply with standard definitions; and

 weaknesses in data quality arrangements, notably a lack of evidence to 
support reported levels of performance in some areas and no independent 
verification of working papers or use of analytical review to help identify 
potential errors. 

59 Our review of 2004/05 and 2005/06 unit business plans found that there is further 
room to develop and make use of PIs and target setting as means to support 
continuous service improvement. Most notably: 

 there are insufficient local PIs and targets that focus on the outcomes/outputs 
to be achieved for local people. Most PIs and targets focus on inputs and 
process. The Authority may not therefore be measuring its performance 
across all five dimensions (qualitative, quantitative, input, output and 
process); and 

 PIs and targets have not been set for all service areas.  

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 64



Performance Management Detailed report  19

Chorley Borough Council 

60 Based on a sample of third quarter updates as at 31 December 2004, we found 
that:

 the narrative given under ‘progress’ is not always sufficient in that it does not 
consistently report the actual progress achieved or explain the reasons for 
any slippage or revised delivery dates;

 the use of ‘progressing well’ or ‘to be completed’ makes it hard to assess 
what progress has actually been achieved; and

 the use of ‘ongoing’ in the revised date column gives no indication of 
expected delivery and hence when service improvements will be achieved. 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 65



20 Performance Management Appendix 1 – Feed back from staff focus groups 

Chorley Borough Council 

Appendix 1 – Feed back from staff focus 
groups

What is performance management? What do you 
understand by the term? 
 It helps to focus staff – use it as a management tool. 

 A long-term tool to keep focused on corporate and service issues. 

 It’s a mixture of things- what you do in your department and at a higher level 
corporately.

 It’s about improving services to the customer – tied up with customer 
satisfaction.

 It’s an essential part of what we do – a means of engagement with the 
community.

 It’s continuous. 

 Measuring against agreed criteria, setting priorities and meeting needs. 

 Positive feedback – good and bad. 

 Highlighting under-performance.

 It’s a way of controlling what everyone does. 

 It’s about improvement - need to change or improve in some way. 

 Is it about BVPIs? 

 Is it about customer satisfaction? 

 Does it cover training needs? 

 I don’t really know 

Do you know what the corporate priorities are/ 
what they mean? 

1 Most managers and staff could say what the three corporate priorities are 
(capacity; customer; cleaner, greener, safer) but there was no consensus or 
shared understanding about what they actually mean in practice or what the 
Authority is seeking to achieve. Some examples were cited by staff as to what 
they thought the priorities meant, but not everyone could think of something 
under each priority heading. 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 66



Performance Management Appendix 1 – Feed back from staff focus groups  21

Chorley Borough Council 

Capacity

2 The groups thought this was about: 

 investing in resources; 

 requirements/responsibilities; 

 growth items at department level to be met in budget/business planning 
cycles; and 

 delivering the service that the customer wants, providing the best value.

Customer

3 The groups thought this was about: 

 improving services to the customer; 

 ‘hard-to-reach’ groups; and 

 partnerships. 

Cleaner, greener, safer 

4 The group thought this was about: 

 recycling; 

 road servicing; 

 litter; 

 live work and visit; 

 anti-social behaviour; and 

 communities 

Performance management – strengths/areas for 
improvement

5 Staff were asked to think about three strengths and three areas for improvement. 
Not everyone could do this. 

6 Strengths identified within the groups: 

 performance management driven from the top (officers); 

 well set out framework – new PDR process; 

 business planning much better - set clearer targets, objectives etc; 

 engagement with partners is improving; 

 new competencies are quite good; 

 Core Brief/Team Brief – used to celebrate success; 

 intranet is a good source of data; 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 67



22 Performance Management Appendix 1 – Feed back from staff focus groups 

Chorley Borough Council 

 performance review – six-weekly one-to-ones are good; 

 regular performance appraisals; 

 willingness to adopt new checking measures; 

 speak to each other more than five years ago; and 

 good performance culture. 

7 Areas for improvement identified within the groups: 

 the Council is trying to change but it is too slow; 

 the Authority is too invisible; 

 learning culture is about taking chances – this is not in place in Chorley; 

 leadership resistance to moving forward stifles real improvement; 

 it is difficult for long-term staff to embed new processes/methods of 
engagement;

 competencies – professional/technical skills. Links are not quite right 
regarding focus and balance – represents a ‘risk’; 

 Chorley Guardian ‘two-page spreads’ – not useful to the public; 

 we don’t measure the effect/impact of what we do; 

 we need more qualitative measures of performance/improvement – the 
number of visits tells you nothing about quality/enjoyment. We don’t even 
measure repeat visits for instance; 

 complaints process – we don’t make enough of user feedback; 

 performance management is not right – individuals, units, groups are ‘tubes’ 
in the dark. Units do their own thing. We are at risk as they don’t tell people – 
eg, undertake work in a building but do not check the asbestos register. Risk 
to professional standards/communication should be addressed; 

 impact of job cuts on service delivery/capacity need to be assessed/ 
communicated. We are always the last to know; 

 need to be better at meeting skills deficits; 

 need to have more discussion about who the customer is – not enough focus 
on the internal customer. Each service area needs to think about who they 
are trying to serve; 

 need more effective training on scrutiny/engaging members to develop 
themselves;

 no real public engagement in the democratic process – eg, can’t speak at 
planning meetings. Many other councils allow this. If we were serious we 
would;

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 68



Performance Management Appendix 1 – Feed back from staff focus groups  23

Chorley Borough Council 

 disabilities are not well-catered for – eg Council chamber access for disabled 
people and hard of hearing not addressed – we are not involving/engaging; 

 partnerships – struggling at the moment regarding partner buy-in; and 

 not good at completing initiatives/assessing benefits/impacts achieved. 

Performance measurement, monitoring and 
reporting

8 Strengths identified within the groups: 

 service level – achieving targets seen as rewarding; 

 target setting links to services and key PIs; 

 measuring and monitoring targets very good at unit level; and 

 continuously reviewing what we do. 

9 Weaknesses identified within the groups: 

 managers and staff were not sure what is improving, staying the same or 
declining;

 there was little awareness of how the Authority is performing against its 
corporate priorities and objectives; 

 we’re top quartile in most BVPIs aren’t we?; 

 members are not driving the process - too much detail, need to clarify their 
role, especially overview and scrutiny; 

 reporting performance needs improving; 

 grass cutting was cited as a good example of how difficult it can be to keep 
members focused; 

 scrutiny panels need to be innovative. Call in – £2,500, not key 
importance/top priority; 

 we are being driven by political elections in May 2006; 

 CPA not embraced by some members; 

 not all staff understand the process of improvement and challenge; 

 officers scope/manipulate the outcome; and 

 need to be more customer-focused – benefits/outcomes. 

Agenda Item 4dAgenda Page 69



Agenda Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Detailed Report 

March 2006 

Best Value 
Performance Plan and 
Indicators Report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Audit 2005-2006 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 71



© Audit Commission 2006 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 020 7828 1212  Fax: 020 7976 6187 Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

External audit is an essential element in the process of accountability for public 
money and makes an important contribution to the stewardship of public 
resources and the corporate governance of public services. 

Audit in the public sector is underpinned by three fundamental principles: 

 auditors are appointed independently from the bodies being audited; 

 the scope of auditors' work is extended to cover not only the audit of financial 
statements but also value for money and the conduct of public business; and 

 auditors may report aspects of their work widely to the public and other key 
stakeholders.

The duties and powers of auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are set out 
in the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Local Government Act 1999 and the 
Commission's statutory Code of Audit Practice. Under the Code of Audit Practice, 
appointed auditors are also required to comply with the current professional 
standards issued by the independent Auditing Practices Board.

Appointed auditors act quite separately from the Commission and in meeting their 
statutory responsibilities are required to exercise their professional judgement 
independently of both the Commission and the audited body. 

Status of our reports to the Council 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the 
Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the 
audited body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to
non-executive directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use 
of the audited body. Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

 any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

 any third party.  

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0845 056 0566. 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 72



Best Value Performance Plan and Indicators Report Contents  3

Chorley Borough Council 

Contents

Summary report 4

Introduction 4

Background 4

Audit approach 4

Main conclusions 5

Detailed report 6

Best value performance plan 6

Performance indicator data quality 7

Appendix 1 – Performance indicators 10

Appendix 2 – Auditor’s statutory report on the best value performance 
plan 17

Auditor’s report to Chorley Borough Council on its best value performance plan 17

Appendix 3 – Action plan 19

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 73



4 Best Value Performance Plan and Indicators Report Summary report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Summary report 

Introduction

1 Our Audit and Inspection Plan for 2005/06 outlines the work that we propose to 
undertake in 2005/06, with the new Code of Audit Practice providing a clearer 
focus of audit effort on overall financial and performance management 
arrangements. This report sets out the results of our review of arrangements to 
ensure:

 the best value performance plan (BVPP) has been prepared and published in 
accordance with statutory guidance, as part of our duty to review 
arrangements to ensure compliance with the general duty of best value; and 

 the data quality of performance information. 

Background

2 Best value, along with the comprehensive performance assessment (CPA), forms 
an integral part of the Government’s programme for the modernisation of local 
government. Both initiatives are inter-linked and provide a framework within which 
councils can seek to improve local service standards and performance.

3 Accurate performance information is the cornerstone for securing improvements 
in performance. This can only be achieved through the development of robust 
systems of information production and reporting. 

Audit approach 

Best value performance plan 

4 Our review of your BVPP includes an assessment of: 

 BVPP compliance with statutory requirements in respect of preparation and 
publication; and 

 Inclusion of all specified performance information in the BVPP. 

Performance indicator data quality 

5 We have reviewed arrangements in place to ensure the data quality of 
performance information, including work undertaken by Internal Audit, focusing 
on best value performance indicators (BVPIs). To confirm the adequacy of these 
arrangements, we have used a risk-based approach to test: 

 the accuracy of performance information; 

 compliance with standard BVPI definitions; and 

 the adequacy of the audit trail and supporting evidence. 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 74



Best Value Performance Plan and Indicators Report Summary report  5

Chorley Borough Council 

Main conclusions 

6 The Council’s BVPP complied with statutory guidance. We have not identified any 
matters to report to the Council and have no recommendations to make on 
procedures in relation to the plan in our statutory report, which is attached at 
Appendix 2.

7 The quality assurance arrangements on performance data quality is under 
developed as reflected in 40 per cent of 2005/06 BVPIs being inaccurate, with 
reservations placed on 5 out of 48 BVPIs. Guidance is available to staff on 
intranet, but a more proactive and standardised approach is required given the 
number of errors identified by external and Internal Audit.  

8 Improvements in the quality assurance framework would allow the Audit 
Commission to reduce its future level of testing and related fee by placing greater 
reliance on the Council’s own arrangements.

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 75



6 Best Value Performance Plan and Indicators Report Detailed report 

Chorley Borough Council 

Detailed report 

Best value performance plan 

9 The BVPP complied with statutory guidance in all significant areas, although we 
identified several minor areas of non-compliance. 

10 Table 1 summarises those areas of non-compliance, together with several other 
issues.

Table 1 BVPP compliance 

The BVPP complied with statutory guidance in all significant areas 

Area Issue 

Compliance

Omission of targets Targets for 2005/06 to 2007/08 had not 
been set for BV203. 

Other

Misstatement of 2004/05 outturn 2004/05 outturn for the following BVPIs 
was either misstated or could not be 
verified:

BVPI 156, 183b, 184a, 185, 203, 76c, 
199 and 205. 

Misstatement of 2004/05 targets 2004/05 targets did not agree to last 
year's BVPP for six BVPIs subject to 
audit.

However, with the exception of BV157, 
notes have been included in the BVPP 
to explain the reason for the variance. 

Inconsistency of information We identified inconsistencies between 
BVPI information in sections two and 
four of the BVPP. 

Source: Audit Commission 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 76



Best Value Performance Plan and Indicators Report Detailed report  7

Chorley Borough Council 

Performance indicator data quality 

Assessment of BVPI accuracy and compliance with standard 
definitions

11 We have used a risk-based approach to select a sample of BVPIs to test: 

 the accuracy of performance information; 

 compliance with standard BVPI definitions; and 

 the adequacy of the audit trail and supporting evidence. 

12 Table 2 summarises the results of our assessment of BVPI accuracy and 
compliance with standard definitions. 

Table 2 BVPIs 

Forty per cent of BVPIs are inaccurate, with reservations placed on five BVPIs 

Category Accurate Level of inaccuracy 

 Yes No 1-5% 5-15% 15%+ Q 

Corporate
health

8 5 3 1 1 - 

Housing 6 6 1 - 2 3 

Benefits 2 1 - 1 - - 

Environment 4 1 - - - 1 

Planning 3 3 - - 2 1 

Environmental
health

1 - - - - - 

Cultural
services

1 - - - - - 

Community
safety

3 3 2 1 - - 

Community
legal service 

1 - - - - - 

Total 29 19 6 3 5 5 

Source: Audit Commission 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 77



8 Best Value Performance Plan and Indicators Report Detailed report 

Chorley Borough Council 

13 Whilst the number of inaccuracies has fallen when compared to 2003/04, the 
number of BVPIs that were misstated by 15 per cent or more has not improved. 
The number of BVPIs on which we have placed a reservation has increased from 
two to five, including BV199 and BV205, which were identified by the Audit 
Commission for particular attention. Appendix 1 shows those indicators which 
were amended or on which reservations were placed following our audit.  

Adequacy of audit trail and supporting documentation 

14 Appendix 1 provides details of any problems with the adequacy of the audit trail 
and supporting documentation. Despite Corporate and Policy Services Unit 
provided guidance on website there remains variation on the quality of supporting 
documentation for the various performance indicators. 

Internal quality assurance arrangements 

15 The Corporate and Policy Services Unit plays a key role in ensuring that the 
information used to monitor performance can be relied upon. Last year, we 
recommended that the Council should consider how it satisfies itself that BVPIs 
are accurately calculated in accordance with standard definitions and that 
sufficient evidence has been retained. More action is needed in this respect as 
supported by the number of inaccuracies identified. 

16 Whilst targets and outturn figures are reviewed centrally by the Corporate and 
Policy Services Unit, there is no evidence of this process and no centrally  
co-ordinated approach to service level reviews. This is particularly important 
since outturn figures are entered directly on the performance management 
system without authorisation from Heads of Service. 

17 ODPM guidance on BVPIs, as well as advice on the retention of adequate 
supporting documentation, is available to staff via the intranet. In addition, the 
Audit Commission BVPI newsletter, which has not been posted on the intranet, 
was circulated to Heads of Service. However, the nature of a number of errors 
identified by external and Internal Audit suggests that this guidance is not being 
properly considered and followed. There is also evidence from Internal Audit 
testing that in some cases the newsletter did not reach staff responsible for 
calculating BVPIs. 

18 Limited guidance on target setting, which is a crucial component of effective 
performance management arrangements, has been made available to staff. We 
identified a number of BVPIs where some or all of the targets for 2005/06 to 
2007/08:

 do not reflect 2004/05 outturn; 

 do not promote continuous improvement; or 

 do not fully consider the BVPI definition. 

19 Whist there may be justifiable reasons for this in some cases, developing formal 
guidance on target setting would help to ensure that SMART targets are set. 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 78



Best Value Performance Plan and Indicators Report Detailed report  9

Chorley Borough Council 

20 Internal Audit acts as the Council’s main control mechanism to ensure the 
accuracy of performance information and the adequacy of supporting systems. 
However, the risk-based approach used by Internal Audit means that only a 
proportion of BVPIs are subject to internal scrutiny every year. 

21 Furthermore, this is a relatively expensive control, as the failings in the rest of the 
quality assurance process means that Internal Audit have been unable to cover 
all indicators, despite the audit taking twice as long as was originally planned. By 
improving data quality, IA could review more BVPIs or reduce their level of 
testing.

22 For 2005/06, we understand that the Council intends to use Internal Audit to 
review the new quality assurance arrangements to ensure that BVPIs have been 
correctly calculated. It is important that the Corporate and Policy Service Unit 
retains ownership of the process of BVPI compilation and ensures that there are 
adequate quality assurance arrangements in place for all BVPIs. 

23 Quality assurance arrangements could easily be further improved through the use 
of analytical review period comparisons of performance and standard proformas 
Analytical review techniques can be used to identify: 

 possible errors in the collation of PIs; 

 the ‘realism’ of targets and the accuracy of reported performance; and 

 significant and/or unexpected variances (to be identified and resolved). 

24 Improvements in the quality assurance framework would allow us to reduce our 
level of testing and related fee by placing greater reliance on the Council’s own 
arrangements.

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 79



1
0

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

1
T

a
b
le

 3
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 B

V
P

Is
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 a
m

e
n
d
e
d
 o

r 
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 r
e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 p

la
c
e

d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 o

r 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

w
e
re

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

it
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 

T
a

b
le

 3
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 

F
o
rt

y
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t 

o
f 

B
V

P
Is

 a
re

 i
n
a
c
c
u

ra
te

, 
w

it
h
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 f

iv
e
 B

V
P

Is
 a

n
d
 t

w
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

B
V

P
I 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
V

a
lu

e
 i

n
 B

V
P

P
 

C
o

rr
e
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 

M
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 h
e
a
lt

h
 

1
b
 

If
 a

=
y
e
s
, 

w
h
e
n
 

w
ill

 f
u
ll 

re
v
ie

w
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

?
 W

ill
 

it
 b

e
 o

n
 t

im
e
?
 

N
o
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

- 
- 

In
c
o
rr

e
c
t 

fo
rm

a
t 

u
s
e
d
 i
n
 B

V
P

P
. 

2
b
 

T
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 r
a
c
e
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y
.

7
9

%
 

7
9

%
 

- 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

to
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

 
7
8
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 

m
a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

E
rr

o
r 

in
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
. 

1
1
a
 

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

to
p
 5

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

e
a

rn
e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 w
o
m

e
n
. 

2
0
.8

3
 

2
0
.8

3
 

- 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

p
a
y
 r

a
te

s
 

u
s
e

d
 w

e
re

 i
n

c
o

rr
e

c
t.

 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 t

h
e

 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 

1
2
 

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
/ 

s
h

if
ts

 l
o

s
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 

s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
 p

e
r 

F
T

E
.

9
.6

7
 

9
.5

9
 

-0
.8

3
%

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

rr
o
rs

 i
n
 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 w

it
h
 s

y
s
te

m
 

u
s
e
d
 t

o
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

N
o
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 e

rr
o
r 

is
 

le
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 1

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t.

 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 80



B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
  

1
1

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

B
V

P
I 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
V

a
lu

e
 i

n
 B

V
P

P
 

C
o

rr
e
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 

M
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

1
4
 

E
a
rl
y
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
ts

 
a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

to
ta

l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

1
.3

 
1

.3
 

- 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

to
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

 
1

.5
5

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t 

m
a

d
e

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
.

1
5
 

Il
l-
h
e
a
lt
h
 

re
ti
re

m
e
n
ts

 a
s
 a

 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 

0
.2

2
%

 
0
.2

2
%

 
- 

E
rr

o
rs

 i
n
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
is

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 

a
ff
e
c
te

d
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

1
6
a
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
L
A

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

d
e
c
la

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
y
 

a
re

 d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
r 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
D

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
t.

3
.5

2
%

 
3

.5
2

%
 

- 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

to
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

 
3

.4
4

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t 

m
a

d
e

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
.

1
7
a
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
L
A

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

fr
o

m
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 
e
th

n
ic

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

1
.3

7
%

 
1

.3
7

%
 

- 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

to
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

 
1

.4
5

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t 

m
a

d
e

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
.

1
5
6
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
b
u
ild

in
g
 o

p
e
n
 t

o
 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 b

y
 

d
is

a
b
le

d
.

7
8
%

 
7
6
.4

7
%

 
-1

.9
6
%

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

fr
o
m

 w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t.
 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 81



1
2

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

B
V

P
I 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
V

a
lu

e
 i

n
 B

V
P

P
 

C
o

rr
e
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 

M
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

H
o

u
s
in

g

6
3
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 S

A
P

 
e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

ra
ti
n
g
 o

f 
L
A

 
o
w

n
e
d
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
.

6
9
 

6
9
 

- 
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 
d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
e
re

 
in

c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
. 

A
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

7
0
 

m
a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

1
8
3
b
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 
o
f 

s
ta

y
 i
n
 h

o
s
te

l 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.

1
3
 

- 
- 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 i
n
te

g
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 f

ro
m

 w
h
ic

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

is
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 t

h
e
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 

a
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
la

c
e
d
 o

n
 B

V
1
8
3
b
. 

1
8
4
a
 

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
L
A

 
h
o
m

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 
n
o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t 

a
t 

 
1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
4
. 

5
.6

9
%

 
1
1
.2

2
%

 
9
7
.1

9
%

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

n
o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 b
e

g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
 

1
8
4
b
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
n
o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
s
 2

0
0
4
 t

o
 

2
0
0
5
.

5
1
.5

3
%

 
5
1
.2

9
 

-0
.4

7
%

 
M

in
o
r 

e
rr

o
r 

in
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 e

rr
o
r 

in
 B

V
1
8

4
a
. 

N
o
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 e

rr
o
r 

is
 

le
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 1

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t.

 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 82



B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
  

1
3

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

B
V

P
I 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
V

a
lu

e
 i

n
 B

V
P

P
 

C
o

rr
e
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 

M
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

1
8
5
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
ts

m
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 k

e
p
t 

fo
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 

re
p

a
ir
s
.

7
8
.5

6
 

- 
- 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 a
re

 k
e
p
t 

fo
r 

a
ll 

jo
b
s
 

w
h
e
re

 a
n
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

is
 m

a
d
e
. 

A
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 

B
V

1
8
5
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
. 

2
0
2
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
le

e
p
in

g
 

ro
u
g
h
 o

n
 a

 
s
in

g
le

 n
ig

h
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

.

6
 

6
 

- 
A

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

z
e
ro

 
m

a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
. 

2
0
3
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.

6
3
.6

4
%

 
- 

- 
P

ri
m

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 

re
ta

in
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
. 

A
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 

B
V

2
0
3
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
.

H
IP

 B
P

S
A

 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 E

3
 

R
e

-l
e

t 
ti
m

e
s
. 

3
9

.4
4

%
 

- 
- 

N
o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 

a
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
la

c
e
d
 o

n
 H

IP
 B

P
S

A
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 E

3
.

H
IP

 H
S

S
A

 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 A

1
 a

n
d
 

A
6

P
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
h
o
m

e
s
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

fo
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
a

n
  

s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
. 

7
0

5
 

- 
- 

S
y
s
te

m
 i
n

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 

a
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
la

c
e
d
 o

n
 H

IP
 H

S
S

A
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 A

1
 a

n
d
 

A
6
.

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 83



1
4

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

B
V

P
I 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
V

a
lu

e
 i

n
 B

V
P

P
 

C
o

rr
e
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 

M
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 t

a
x

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

7
6
c
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fr

a
u
d
 

in
v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

a
s
e
lo

a
d
. 

4
7
 

4
1
.5

2
 

-1
1
.6

6
%

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e

n
tl
y
 

fo
u
n
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
n
e
 

a
n
d
 t

w
o
. 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

1
9
9
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

la
n
d
 h

a
v
in

g
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 d

e
p
o
s
it
s
 

o
f 

lit
te

r 
a

n
d

 d
e

tr
it
u

s
. 

1
4
%

 
- 

- 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
 o

f 
3
0
0
 s

it
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

3
0
 s

it
e
s
 i
n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 t

e
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 l
a
n
d
 u

s
e
 

c
a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 t

h
re

e
 

s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
p
e
ri
o
d
s
.

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 

a
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
la

c
e
d
 o

n
 B

V
1
9
9
. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

1
0
6
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 
h
o
m

e
s
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
. 

3
7

.2
%

 
3

7
.2

%
 

- 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

to
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

 
2
9
.6

 p
e
r 

c
e
n

t 
m

a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

In
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 b

y
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
. 

2
0
4
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
e
a
ls

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 

to
 r

e
fu

s
e

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
.

1
8

%
 

1
8

%
 

- 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

to
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

 
1
5
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 

m
a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

In
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
.

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 84



B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
  

1
5

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

B
V

P
I 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
V

a
lu

e
 i

n
 B

V
P

P
 

C
o

rr
e
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 

M
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

2
0
5
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t
5
5
.5

5
%

 
- 

- 
P

ri
m

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 

re
ta

in
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 

a
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
la

c
e
d
 o

n
 B

V
2
0
5
. 

C
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 r
e
la

te
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
7
0
a
 

V
is

it
s
 t

o
/u

s
e
 o

f 
m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

2
6
8
 

2
6
8
 

- 
W

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 
re

q
u
e
s
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

6
 J

u
n
e
, 

w
e
re

 s
lo

w
 

to
 m

a
te

ri
a
lis

e
. 

1
7
0
b
 

V
is

it
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 i
n
 

p
e
rs

o
n
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

2
4
7
 

2
4
7
 

- 
A

s
 B

V
1
7
0
a
. 

1
7

0
c
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 v
is

it
in

g
 

m
u
s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d
 

g
a
lle

ri
e
s
 i
n
 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

g
ro

u
p

s
.

2
,3

1
1
 

2
,3

1
1
 

- 
A

s
 B

V
1
7
0
a
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 

1
2
6
 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 b

u
rg

la
ri
e
s
 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
. 

7
.6

8
 

7
.6

8
 

- 
A

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

8
.4

5
 

m
a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 d

id
 n

o
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
rg

la
ri
e
s
 

o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 r
e

p
o
rt

e
d
. 

In
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
.

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 85



1
6

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 –

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

B
V

P
I 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
V

a
lu

e
 i

n
 B

V
P

P
 

C
o

rr
e
c
t 

v
a
lu

e
 

M
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 

1
2
7
a
 

V
io

le
n
t 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 b

y
 a

 
s
tr

a
n

g
e

r 
p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

7
.5

6
 

7
.5

6
 

- 
A

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

7
.8

5
 

m
a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 d

id
 n

o
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
io

le
n
t 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 

o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 r
e

p
o
rt

e
d
. 

1
2
7
b
 

V
io

le
n
t 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 a

 
p
u
b
lic

 p
la

c
e
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

1
3
.4

7
 

1
3
.4

7
 

- 
A

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

7
.8

5
 

m
a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

S
a

m
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
 a

s
 f

o
r 

B
V

1
2

7
a

. 

1
2
7
c
 

V
io

le
n
t 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

lic
e
n
s
e
d
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

2
.5

9
 

2
.5

9
 

- 
A

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

2
.6

6
 

m
a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

S
a

m
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
 a

s
 f

o
r 

B
V

1
2

7
a

. 

1
2
7
d
 

V
io

le
n
t 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

7
.7

4
 

7
.7

4
 

- 
A

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

7
.8

9
 

m
a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

S
a

m
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
 a

s
 f

o
r 

B
V

1
2

7
a

. 

1
2
8
 

V
e
h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

9
.4

6
 

9
.4

6
 

- 
A

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

9
.6

0
5
 

m
a
d
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 B

V
P

P
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 d

id
 n

o
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
e
h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
s
 

o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 r
e

p
o
rt

e
d
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 86



Best Value Performance Plan and Indicators Report Appendix 2 – Auditor’s 
statutory report on the best value performance plan  17

Chorley Borough Council 

Appendix 2 – Auditor’s statutory report 
on the best value performance plan 

Auditor’s report to Chorley Borough Council on 
its best value performance plan 

Authority’s responsibilities 

1 The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 
stewardship and governance, and to regularly review the adequacy and 
effectiveness of these arrangements. Under the Local Government Act 1999
(the Act), the Council is required to prepare and publish a best value performance 
plan summarising the Council’s assessments of its performance and position in 
relation to its statutory duty to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement to the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

2 The Council is responsible for the preparation of the plan and for the information 
and assessments set out within it. The Council is also responsible for establishing 
appropriate corporate performance management and financial management 
arrangements from which the information and assessments in its plan are 
derived. The form and content of the best value performance plan are prescribed 
in section 6 of the Act and statutory guidance issued by the Government. 

Auditors' responsibilities 

3 I am required by section 7 of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Audit 
Commission’s statutory Code of Audit Practice to carry out an audit of the 
council’s best value performance plan, certify that I have done so, and report: 

 any matters that prevent me from concluding that the plan has been prepared 
and published in accordance with statutory requirements set out in section 6 
of the Local Government Act 1999 and statutory guidance; and 

 where appropriate, making any recommendations under section 7 of the 
Local Government Act 1999. 

Report and recommendations 

4 I certify that we have audited the Council’s best value performance plan in 
accordance with section 7 of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Audit 
Commission’s statutory Code of Audit Practice. 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 87



18 Best Value Performance Plan and Indicators Report Appendix 2 – Auditor’s 
statutory report on the best value performance plan 

Chorley Borough Council 

5 In preparing my report I am not required to form a view on the completeness or 
accuracy of the information or the realism and achievability of the assessments 
published by the Council. My work, therefore, comprised a review and 
assessment of the plan and, where appropriate, examination on a test basis of 
relevant evidence, sufficient to satisfy me that the plan includes those matters 
prescribed in legislation and statutory guidance and that the arrangements for 
publishing the plan complied with the requirements of the legislation and statutory 
guidance.

6 I have not identified any matters to report to the Authority. 

7 I have no recommendations to make on procedures in relation to the plan. 

Mike Thomas 
12 December 2005 

Audit Commission 

Second Floor 

Aspinall House 

Aspinall Close 

Middlebrook

Bolton

BL6 6QQ 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 88



B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 –

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
  

1
9

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o

w
 

2
 =

 M
e
d

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

B
V

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

q
u

a
li
ty

 a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e
t 

s
e

tt
in

g
 

R
1
 I

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

is
e
d
 

p
ro

fo
rm

a
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u
re

s
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
B

V
P

I 
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

.

3
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 

P
o
lic

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(J
R

)

Y
e
s
 

P
ro

fo
rm

a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

B
V

P
Is

, 
K

P
Is

 a
n
d
 L

A
A

 P
Is

. 
F

o
rm

 
to

 r
e
c
o
rd

 d
a
ta

, 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 d

e
ta

ils
, 

ta
rg

e
ts

, 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 a
n
d
 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
.

1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0

6
 

R
2
 I

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

n
a
ly

ti
c
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 

te
c
h
n
iq

u
e
s
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 

g
re

a
te

r 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
B

V
P

Is
, 

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 t

h
o
s
e
 n

o
t 

te
s
te

d
 

b
y
 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
. 

3
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 

P
o
lic

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(J
R

)

Y
e
s
 

P
ro

fo
rm

a
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

lu
s
 s

o
ft
w

a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 

u
s
e
d
 i
n
d
e
p

e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
a
n
d
 v

e
ri
fy

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
. 

1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0

6
 

R
3

 E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

B
V

P
Is

 w
it
h
 

re
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 f

u
lly

 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
ti
fi
e
d
 t

o
 

a
v
o
id

 f
u
tu

re
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

3
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 

P
o
lic

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(J
R

)

Y
e
s
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 P

o
lic

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 

w
it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d
s
 

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
p
p

ro
p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

a
n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
. 

2
8
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
6
 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 89



2
0

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 R

e
p
o
rt

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 –

 A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

C
h

o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
1
 =

 L
o

w
 

2
 =

 M
e
d

 
3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

D
a
te

 

R
4
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 f

o
rm

a
l 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

o
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e
tt
in

g
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

 
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 o
n
  

ta
rg

e
t-

s
e

tt
in

g
;

 
d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 
s
e

t;

 
d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
ts

 s
e
t 

in
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

la
n

s
; 

a
n
d

 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
s
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 h

o
w

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
t.

 

3
/2

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 

P
o
lic

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(J
R

)

Y
e
s
 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
. 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

Agenda Item 4eAgenda Page 90



 
 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Finance 
(Introduced by the Executive 

Leader) 

 

Management Team 

Audit Committee 

Executive Cabinet 

 

 
21/03/06 
27/03/06 
30/03/06 

 

 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2006/07      

 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1. To summarise and explain the basis of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2006/07 and 

the priority areas to be reviewed during the new financial year. 
  
2. To seek the Audit Committee’s approval of the Plan and its subsequent adoption by the 

Executive Cabinet. 
 
 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
3. As an independent assurance function, Internal Audit’s prime objective is to evaluate and 

report on the adequacy of the Council’s governance, risk management and internal 
control framework. In so doing, Internal Audit also contributes to the economic, efficient 
and effective use of resources.  

 
4. The Internal Audit Service therefore makes a vital contribution to ensuring that the 

Council is a performing organisation.   
    
 
RISK ISSUES 
 
5. All the issues raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations 

in the following categories: 

 

Strategy 3 Information  

Reputation 3 Regulatory/Legal 3 
Financial 3 Operational  

People  Other  

  
6. The provision of an adequate and effective system of Internal Audit is a statutory 

requirement.  
 
7. Perhaps more importantly, the Internal Audit Service has a pivotal role to play in ensuring 

a strong governance, risk management and internal control framework within the Council. 
This is key to the effective management of the Council as a whole and is now of central 
importance in CPA terms.  

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 91



BACKGROUND 
 
8. The traditional approach to organising audit work involved the production of a rolling 

Strategic Audit Plan covering a 3 to 5 year period, during which time the aim was to 
review all the Council’s financial systems, sub-systems and processes. In addition to 
this core role, Internal Audit also provided specialist input to areas like computer audit, 
contracts audit, value for money reviews and investigations. The amount of time 
spent on any particular area in any given year was determined by a formal risk 
assessment.  

 
9. Although the traditional role has not been discarded altogether, the focus is now on 

adding maximum value to the organisation by reviewing its overall governance 
framework, including business-critical corporate systems. A planning horizon of up to 
5 years is also no longer considered appropriate in a dynamic local government 
environment where extensive organisational, technological and process change has 
become the norm. 

 
10. The latest CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit recommends the compilation of an 

Annual Audit Plan each financial year to review the key business risks that are 
pertinent to the Council at the time. The draft Annual Audit Plan for 2006/07 shown at 
Appendix A has been constructed on this basis. Appendix B provides an outline of the 
scope and audit approach for each key review planned. The actual terms of reference will 
however only be firmed up after consulting with the key stakeholders prior to the start of 
each assignment. 

 
11. The Audit Plan is structured into five sections, each of which are explained below: 
 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
12. Corporate Governance is the product of the interlocking systems and processes through 

which an organisation manages and directs itself to determine and deliver its objectives.  
Whilst as the phrase implies this includes issues of probity and ethics the impact is much 
wider and CIPFA and SOLACE in their joint publication “Corporate Governance in Local 
Government – A Framework for Community Governance” point to the following five 
dimensions: 

 

� Community Focus 

� Service Delivery Arrangements 

� Structures and Processes 

� Risk Management and Internal Control 

� Standards of Conduct 

 
13. Best Internal Audit practice therefore now involves providing assurance on the 

effectiveness of all the Council’s fundamental business processes, including 
community and corporate planning, performance management, risk management, 
constitutional compliance and its arrangements for ensuring the economic, 
efficient and effective use of resources. 

 
14. The Internal Audit Service is increasingly providing proactive support in these areas. 

During the last financial year, this included taking a prominent role in production of the 
Statement on Internal Control (SIC). In the second half of the year the Audit & Risk 
Manager was extensively involved in the Use of Resources assessment prior to the 
Audit Commission’s formal inspection.  

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 92



15. Other key inputs included the production of (or assistance with) corporate policies & 
procedures in areas like Anti-Money Laundering and Whistle-Blowing. Internal Audit 
also co-ordinated the Council’s contribution to the Audit Commission’s National Fraud 
Initiative 2004/5 exercise. 

 
16. This is an ongoing and developing area of input and an appropriate allocation of time has 

been built into the 2006/07 Audit Plan for this purpose. 
 
17. In addition to this direct, proactive input, the aim is also to conduct reviews of specific 

governance processes. The emphasis in early 2006/07 will be to review some of the 
areas where issues were raised in the recent Use of Resources assessment.  

 
18. Several other factors have also been taken into account when arriving at a list of 

governance audit topics next year. These include how recently they have been audited 
(either internally or externally) or where it would not be appropriate to carry out an audit 
next year due to process changes that are in progress. 

 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
19. The Internal Audit Service has an ongoing role in developing the authority’s risk 

management framework and systems, largely through the Audit & Risk Manager’s work 
on the corporate Risk Management Board. 

 
20. This involves overseeing the establishment and revision of strategic and service-level 

business risk assessments. More recently, the Audit & Risk Manager also assumed 
responsibility for arranging and managing the Council’s insurance requirements. 

 
 
BUSINESS CRITICAL SYSTEMS 
 
21. In addition to auditing governance-related processes, we undertake reviews of other 

corporate systems or processes whose effective operation is also critically important to 
the overall performance of the organisation. Such systems appear under the following 
broad headings: 

 

� Corporate Planning  
� Performance Management 
� Risk Management 
� Asset Management 
� Human Resource Management 
� Management of ICT  
� Information Management 

 
22. Again, when arriving at a list of individual systems for review during 2006/07, 

consideration has been given to how recently they have been audited or where process 
changes are in progress. 

 
 
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
23. This section covers our continuing responsibility to provide assurance that effective 

financial controls remain in place within the Council. This is underpinned by an 
annual evaluation of the key controls in all the main financial systems; together with more 
detailed reviews of specific systems on a cyclical basis according to audit need. Our work 
in this area ensures compliance with the Director of Finance’s formal obligations 
regarding audit, under S.151 of the Local Government Act. 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 93



CONTINGENCY 
 
24. This aspect of the Audit Plan is to enable us to provide ongoing advice to managers, 

respond to requests for investigations and to follow-up recommendations made in 
earlier audit reports. 

 
25. It also contains a provision for preparing reports for Audit Committee and to follow up 

the key issues raised in Audit Commission reports on behalf of the Council. 
 
 
AUDIT RESOURCES 
 
26. The Internal Audit Plan for 2006/07 is based on a resource of 675 audit days. This is the 

number of chargeable days available within the existing budget (after deducting for 
annual leave and other non-productive time) and is comprises of a mix of in-house and 
bought-in resources from Lancashire Audit Services (LCC). The total chargeable days are 
to be allocated as follows: 

Days   % 
 
Corporate Governance   235   35   
Risk Management      90   13  
Business Critical Systems   110   16 
Financial Management   120   18 
Contingency     120   18 
 
Total      675  100  

 

27. Our partnering arrangement with Lancashire Audit Services continues and is producing a 
practical service solution and a better overall audit product in a variety of ways: 

 

� Access to specialists and a wider skills mix (e.g. ICT audit); 
� The retention of local knowledge, experience and relationships in-house; 
� Continuous on-site contact and ongoing availability for advice; 
� Enabling direct input to corporate policies and procedures on governance and risk 

management; 
� Retaining ownership of the risk assessment and audit planning processes; 
� Retaining a responsive service (e.g. investigations); 
� Sharing of ideas, approaches & information. 

 
28. We are also continuing to work closely with the Audit Commission in a number of areas 

and have formalised this arrangement in a Protocol for Joint Working and Co-
operation, which is periodically reviewed and updated. 

 
 
THE CHANGING ROLE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
29. Consistent with the changing role of the audit function, the latest guidance on Audit 

Committees have also “raised the bar” in terms of their expected role and jurisdiction. The 
latest guidance stresses that they have a key role to play in monitoring the organisation’s 
overall governance arrangements, including risk management and performance and 
holding the executive to account on these matters. CIPFA have produced a new model 
terms of reference to reflect this. 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 94



30. This was endorsed by the Audit Commission in their recent Use of Resources report. The 
Commission recommended the Council to “extend the Audit Committee’s terms of 
reference to more clearly specify its risk and governance remit and to support this with 
more awareness training”. The Commission also recommended that the Audit Committee 
should be “independent of both the Executive and Scrutiny functions”. 

 
31. There are therefore important issues to be resolved regarding the Audit Committee’s 

remit, composition, membership, training and reporting lines. These issues are 
explored more fully in a separate report on the Role & Membership of the Audit 
Committee (also on this agenda). 

 
 
COMMENTS OF THE HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
32. Not applicable to this report. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
33. That the Audit Committee approves the 2006/07 Internal Audit Plan and recommends its 

adoption by the Executive Cabinet. 
 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
(If the recommendation is accepted) 
 
34. To ensure that the Council has in place an adequate and effective internal audit of its 

system of governance, risk management and internal control in accordance with best 
practice and professional standards. 

 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
35. None 
 

 
GARY HALL 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 

Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

Accounts & Audit Regulations 
2003 

 

Code of Practice for Internal 
Audit in Local Government in 

the United Kingdom 2003 

2003 FINANCE UNIT 

 

Gillibrand St. Offices 

 

 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Garry Barclay 5468 10/03/06 AnnualPlanReport.doc 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 95



APPENDIX A 

 

 

 
 
 

Audit Estimated

Area Days

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Proactive Work)

External Assurance (CPA / Use of Resources / SIC) 40

Corporate Governance Policies & Procedures (Production & Raising Awareness) 30

National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 20

Efficiency & Transformation 15

BVPI's 20

Corporate Governance - General 10

135

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - (Reviews)

Corporate Strategies & Policies 25

Management of Partnerships and Partnering Contracts 35

Corporate Anti-Fraud & Corruption Arrangements 20

Compliance Review of Standing Orders, Financial Procedure Rules & Scheme of Delegation 20

100

RISK MANAGEMENT (Proactive Work)

Risk Management Board 15

Risk Management Policies & Procedures 15

Strategic Risk Assessment 10

Service Unit Risk Assessment 15

Insurance 25

Risk Management - General 10

90

BUSINESS CRITICAL SYSTEMS (Reviews)

IT Security 20

Data Protection 20

Freedom of Information 20

Business Continuity Planning 20

Project Management 20

Business Risk Areas General 10

110

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT (Reviews)

Key Systems / Interrogations 40

Debt Management 15

Benefits - Security 15

Cash Collection & Banking 15

Charging Policies 25

Main Financial Systems - General 10

120

CONTINGENCY

Irregularity Investigations 35

Post Audit Reviews 25

Audit Commission Reports 20

Unplanned Reviews 20

Audit Committee Reporting 20

120

TOTAL CHARGEABLE DAYS 675

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 96



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
 

K
E

Y
 R

E
V

IE
W

S
 

 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
A

R
E

A
S

 
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

S
C

O
P

E
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 &

 P
o

li
c
ie

s
 

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 t

o
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
, 

p
ro

m
o
te

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 k

e
y
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
. 

  

�
 

D
e
fi
n
it
io

n
s
 (

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 /

 p
o
lic

y
 /

 p
ro

to
c
o
l 
/ 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

, 
e
tc

) 
�
 

R
e
le

v
a
n
c
e
 /

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 /

 l
in

k
 t

o
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 /

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 

�
 

O
m

is
s
io

n
s
 /

 d
u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

�
 

F
o
rm

a
l 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
 

�
 

P
u
b
lic

it
y
 /

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 /

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 /

 i
n
tr

a
n
e
t 

�
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 /
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 /
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

/ 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 /
 u

p
d
a
te

 
�
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 

�
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

/ 
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o
n
 

�
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 f

o
rm

a
t 

/ 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

�
 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t

o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 /

 c
o
m

p
ly

 
 

�
 

H
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
re

v
ie

w
 

�
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
ll 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
, 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 &

 p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 
�
 

In
c
lu

d
e
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 
it
e
m

s
 

�
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 f

o
r 

o
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

r 
o
v
e
rl
a
p
 

�
 

C
o
lle

c
t 

k
e
y
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

e
v
e
ry

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

e
tc

) 
b
y
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 

(t
it
le

, 
ty

p
e
, 

d
a
te

, 
v
e
rs

io
n
, 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l,
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
p
u
b
lic

it
y
, 

lin
k
 t

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

e
tc

) 
 

�
 

In
te

rv
ie

w
 k

e
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

w
n
e
rs

 
�
 

P
ro

d
u
c
e
 m

a
tr

ix
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 &

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

�
 

T
e
s
t 

fo
r 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
, 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 &

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
  

�
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 g
e
n
e
ri
c
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 
P

a
rt

n
e
ri

n
g

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
 T

h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 t

o
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

 t
h
e
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 r
is

k
s
. 

  

�
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 /

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
�
 

D
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 /

 l
is

t 
/ 

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
 

�
 

C
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 (

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

, 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l,
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 
b
o
d
y
, 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
, 

e
tc

) 
 

�
 

W
h
e
th

e
r 

lin
e
d
 t

o
 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 (

e
g

 P
S

A
, 

L
A

A
, 

e
tc

) 
�
 

C
la

ri
ty

 o
n
 r

o
le

s
 &

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
  

�
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 /

 f
o
rm

a
lis

e
d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 /
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

�
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

/ 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 /

 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 /
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 

�
 

H
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
re

v
ie

w
 

�
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
, 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 &
 p

a
rt

n
e
ri
n
g

 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 (
in

c
. 

L
S

P
) 

�
 

C
o
lle

c
t 

k
e
y
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

e
v
e
ry

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
e
tc

) 
b
y
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 /

 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
  

�
 

P
ro

d
u
c
e
 m

a
tr

ix
 o

f 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 i
s
s
u
e
s
  

�
 

E
v
a
lu

a
te

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

re
c
o
rd

in
g

 &
 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

�
 

R
e
fe

r 
to

 e
x
is

ti
n
g

 a
u
d
it
 &

 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 97



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
 

K
E

Y
 R

E
V

IE
W

S
 

 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
A

R
E

A
S

 
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

S
C

O
P

E
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

 

�
 

P
a
y
m

e
n
t 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 /

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 

�
 

R
is

k
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

/ 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
v
e
tt

in
g

 /
 d

u
e
 

d
ili

g
e
n
c
e
 

�
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

�
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 

A
n

ti
-F

ra
u

d
 &

 C
o

rr
u

p
ti

o
n

 
A

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 

ta
n
d
e
m

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

te
s
t 

th
e
 a

d
e
q
u
a
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
re

 g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 t

o
 

p
re

v
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
te

r 
fr

a
u
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
. 

  

�
 

W
h
is

tl
e
 b

lo
w

in
g

 p
o
lic

y
 

�
 

A
n
ti
 f

ra
u
d
 &

 c
o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

�
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

�
 

R
e
g

is
te

rs
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
ts

, 
g

if
ts

 &
 h

o
s
p
it
a
lit

y
 

�
 

C
o
d
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 

�
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 &

 d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

�
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 &

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 

�
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 &
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
�
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

�
 

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

/ 
v
e
tt

in
g

 
 

�
 

J
o
in

t 
re

v
ie

w
 w

it
h
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 u

s
in

g
 A

C
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 

to
o
l 

   

S
ta

n
d

in
g

 O
rd

e
rs

, 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
P

ro
c
e
d

u
re

 R
u

le
s
 &

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
D

e
le

g
a
ti

o
n

 
 T

h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i

s
 t

o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 
le

v
e
ls

 o
f 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 l

a
id

 d
o
w

n
 i

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 
ru

le
s
 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

o
f 

d
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
. 

  

�
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 /

  
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

  
�
 

P
u
b
lic

it
y
 &

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

 

�
 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

u
d
it
 

�
 

T
e
s
ti
n
g

 
o
f 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 

&
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 

o
f 

m
a
in

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 

�
 

In
te

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 /

 q
u
iz

 
�
 

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
o
p
 

  

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 98



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
 

K
E

Y
 R

E
V

IE
W

S
 

 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
A

R
E

A
S

 
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

S
C

O
P

E
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

 

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 C

R
IT

IC
A

L
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 
 

 

IC
T

 S
e
c
u

ri
ty

  

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 t

o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

s
 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 I

C
T

 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
m

p
u
te

r 
h
a
rd

w
a
re

, 
s
o
ft

w
a
re

, 
d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

  
  

�
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
 &

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

�
 

A
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 &

 t
ra

in
in

g
  

�
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
&

 d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

�
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

�
 

H
a
rd

w
a
re

, 
s
o
ft

w
a
re

, 
d
a
ta

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

�
 

P
h
y
s
ic

a
l,
 l
o
g

ic
a
l 
&

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
�
 

In
te

rn
e
t 

/ 
in

tr
a
n
e
t 

�
 

In
te

rn
e
t 

&
 e

-m
a
il 

u
s
a
g

e
 /

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 
�
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 &
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
 

�
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 s
y
s
te

m
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
  

�
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 
o
f 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 
w

it
h
 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 
p
o
lic

y
 
&

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
ro

u
ti
n
e
s
 a

re
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

�
 

S
e
le

c
ti
v
e
 

te
s
ti
n
g

 
o
n
 

m
a
in

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

p
o
lic

y
 

(e
.g

. 
p
a
s
s
w

o
rd

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

) 
 

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 t

o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 f
u
ll 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 A

c
t.

 

�
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 &

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

�
 

A
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 &

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

�
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 /

 a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 

�
 

R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
/ 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

�
 

L
ia

is
o
n
 w

it
h
 D

P
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

re
 n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 

�
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
v
e
r 

d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 
 

�
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 s
y
s
te

m
-b

a
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

F
re

e
d

o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 t

o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 f
u
ll 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

F
re

e
d
o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t.

 
 

�
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 &

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

�
 

A
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 &

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

�
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
v
e
r 

d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 
�
 

D
a
ta

 /
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 

  

�
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 s
y
s
te

m
-b

a
s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 99



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
 

K
E

Y
 R

E
V

IE
W

S
 

 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
A

R
E

A
S

 
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

S
C

O
P

E
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it

y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 c
le

a
r,

 u
p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 
B

C
P

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 t

e
s
te

d
 a

n
d
 f

u
lly

 
u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 b

y
 t

h
o
s
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

in
v
o
k
in

g
 i
t 

in
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
. 

 

�
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

&
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 

�
 

D
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

�
 

D
is

a
s
te

r 
re

c
o
v
e
ry

 
�
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 &

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

�
 

T
e
s
ti
n
g

 
�
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 /

 u
p
d
a
ti
n
g

 
 

�
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

(p
o
lic

ie
s
, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
, 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 

te
s
t 

p
la

n
s
 &

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
, 

e
tc

) 
�
 

T
e
s
ti
n
g

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 /

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
  

 

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

 T
h
e
 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
a
u
d
it
 
is

 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 
a
re

 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

in
 

p
la

c
e
 

fo
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 

c
o
n
fo

rm
 

w
it
h
 

b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

a
re

 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

p
p
lie

d
. 

 

�
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
�
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 &

 d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

�
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 /

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

�
 

A
d
e
q

u
a
c
y
 

o
f 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

(p
ro

je
c
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
, 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 &
 c

o
n
tr

o
l)
 

�
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 &

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

�
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 &
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

�
 

C
o
n
fo

rm
it
y
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
  

�
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 &

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

�
 

T
e
s
ti
n
g

 f
o
r 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
/ 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

�
 

S
a
m

p
le

 t
e
s
t 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
  

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 

 
 

K
e
y
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 /

 I
n

te
rr

o
g

a
ti

o
n

s
  

 T
h
e
 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 

a
u
d
it
 

is
 

to
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
ly

 t
e
s
t 

a
n
d
 i

n
te

rr
o
g
a
te

 a
ll 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

m
a
in

 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
y
 
re

m
a
in

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 
a
n
d
 

s
e
c
u
re

. 
  

�
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
k
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 

a
ll 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 m

a
in

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

 

�
 

H
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
y
s
te

m
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
, 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

te
s
ti
n
g

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 a

re
a
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 n

e
w

 
in

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
u
d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 (

IA
S

) 
�
 

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 c

o
m

p
u
te

ri
s
e
d
 i
n
te

rr
o
g

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

  
  

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 100



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
 

K
E

Y
 R

E
V

IE
W

S
 

 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
A

R
E

A
S

 
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

S
C

O
P

E
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

 

D
e
b

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

d
e
b
t 

is
 m

in
im

is
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 a

n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d

e
b
t 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
.  

�
 

U
s
e
 o

f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 m

e
th

o
d
s
 

�
 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 D

M
 P

o
lic

y
 

�
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g

 &
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

�
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

�
 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

�
 

W
ri
te

-o
ff

s
 

 

�
 

R
e
v
is

it
in

g
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

a
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

�
 

A
n
a
ly

ti
c
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

n
 k

e
y
 d

e
b
t 

s
tr

e
a
m

s
 

  

B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

S
e
c
u

ri
ty

) 
 T

h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 t

o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

c
o
m

p
ly

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 D

W
P

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

 

�
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 D

W
P

 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 

 

�
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 D

W
P

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 D

W
P

 s
e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

to
o
l 

 

C
a
s
h

 C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 &
 B

a
n

k
in

g
 

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

th
e
 

re
c
e
ip

t,
 b

a
n
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
s
h
 i
n
c
o
m

e
. 

  
 

�
 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

�
 

D
e
p
o
s
it
s
 

�
 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 

�
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 s
y
s
te

m
-b

a
s
e
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
  

�
 

E
v
a
lu

a
te

 k
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
�
 

T
e
s
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
�
 

F
o
llo

w
-u

p
 o

f 
k
n
o
w

n
 p

ro
b
le

m
 a

re
a
s
 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 101



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
 

K
E

Y
 R

E
V

IE
W

S
 

 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
A

R
E

A
S

 
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

S
C

O
P

E
 

 
A

U
D

IT
  

A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

 

C
h

a
rg

in
g

 P
o

li
c
ie

s
 

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 t

o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

ll 
it
s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

p
o
w

e
rs

 a
n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
, 

fo
rm

a
lly

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

  
 

�
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 /

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
c
h
a
rg

in
g

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 

�
 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g

 p
o
w

e
rs

 &
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
  

 
�
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

�
 

O
p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 l
e
v
ie

d
  

�
 

F
o
rm

a
l 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
 

�
 

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 &

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 (

e
x
te

rn
a
lly

 &
 

in
te

rn
a
lly

) 
 

�
 

A
d
e
q

u
a
c
y
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 t

ra
ils

 f
o
r 

re
c
e
ip

t 
&

 d
e
p
o
s
it
 

 

�
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

in
c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g

 p
o
w

e
rs

 
&

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

�
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

ta
ri
ff

s
, 

fe
e
s
 &

 c
h
a
rg

e
s
 (

le
v
ie

d
, 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
, 

p
u
b
lic

is
e
d
, 

e
tc

) 
 

   

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 102



 

 

 

 
 

ADMINREP/REPORT 
 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Finance 

Management Team 

Audit Committee 

Executive Cabinet 

21/03/06 

27/03/06 

30/03/06 

 

THE ROLE & MEMBERSHIP OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
PURPOSES OF REPORT 
 

1. To evaluate the Council’s compliance with new CIPFA guidance on the composition and 
remit of Audit Committees.     

 
2. To put forward proposals to address recommendations made by the Audit Commission in 

the Use of Resources assessment, regarding the Audit Committee’s remit and 
relationship with the Executive and Scrutiny functions.   

 
3. To recommend the Council’s adoption of the new CIPFA model Terms of Reference for 

Audit Committees.    
 
 
CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
4. The latest guidance on audit committees and the Audit Commission’s corresponding 

recommendations have “raised the bar” in terms of the expected role and jurisdiction of 
the Council’s Audit Committee. The Committee now has a key role to play in monitoring 
the organisation’s overall governance arrangements, including risk management and 
performance and holding the Executive to account on these matters. 

  
5. The role of the Audit Committee is therefore of central importance to ensuring that the 

Council is a performing organisation. 
 
 
RISK ISSUES 
 
6. The issues raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 
 

Strategy 3 Information 3 
Reputation 3 Regulatory/Legal 3 
Financial 3 Operational  

People  Other  

 
7. The establishment of effective monitoring arrangements for governance, performance, 

risk and internal control matters is key to the effective management of the Council as a 
whole and is now of central importance in CPA terms. 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 103



BACKGROUND 
 
8. The Council’s Audit Committee has been in place since 2002 and has operated in 

accordance with the terms of reference shown at Appendix 1. These terms of reference 
were formally approved and were aimed to ensure compliance with the Audit Commission 
guidance “Called to Account” – The Role of Audit Committees in Local Government”. The 
Committee’s remit has largely covered the monitoring of audit workload and quality (both 
internal and external).  

 
9. Although the Committee has operated very effectively in this regard, the latest CIPFA 

guidance now directs Audit Committees to monitor councils’ arrangements for 
governance, risk management and performance. The Audit Commission has made it a 
condition of CPA that authorities are unlikely to be rated good or excellent unless they 
have an effective audit committee in place.  

 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
10. Corporate Governance is the product of the interlocking systems and processes through 

which an organisation manages and directs itself to determine and deliver its objectives.  
Whilst as the phrase implies this includes issues of probity and ethics the impact is much 
wider and CIPFA and SOLACE in their joint publication “Corporate Governance in Local 
Government – A Framework for Community Governance” point to the following five 
dimensions: 

 

• Community Focus 

• Service Delivery Arrangements 

• Structures and Processes 

• Risk Management and Internal Control 

• Standards of Conduct 

 
11. This therefore requires the Audit Committee to provide oversight of the effectiveness of all 

the Council’s fundamental business processes, including community and corporate 
planning, performance management, financial management, risk management, 
constitutional compliance and its arrangements for ensuring the economic, efficient and 
effective use of resources. 

 
12. Of critical importance is the Audit Committee’s role in receiving key external and internal 

audit reports in these areas, and tracking the implementation of recommendations to 
secure improvement. 

 
 
NEW CIPFA GUIDANCE 
 
13. In recognition of the wider role now expected of Audit Committees, CIPFA have issued 

new guidance: “Practical Guidance for Local Authorities” including a new model terms of 
reference (Appendix 2). This is far more prescriptive and wide ranging than the Audit 
Committee’s original / current terms of reference and as such the Council automatically 
finds itself in a largely non-compliant position.  

 
14. The key elements of the new CIPFA guidance are re-produced below, together with an 

assessment of the extent to which the Council’s Audit Committee arrangements currently 
comply: 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 104



 
MAIN 

PRINCIPLES 
 

 
CURRENT 
STATUS 

 

 
ISSUES  

 
ACTION 

REQUIRED 

 
PURPOSE 
 

   

Authorities should formally 
approve a Statement of Purpose 
along these lines: 

 

“The purpose of the Audit 
Committee is to provide 
independent assurance of the 
adequacy of the risk 
management framework and the 
associated control environment, 
independent scrutiny of the 
authority’s financial and non-
financial performance to the 
extent that it affects the 
authority’s exposure to risk and 
weakens the control 
environment, and to oversee the 
financial reporting process”. 

 

Non-
compliant.  
 
 

No Statement of Purpose is 
currently in situ. 

A Statement of Purpose should 
be formulated along the lines 
suggested. 

 
CORE FUNCTIONS 

 

   

� Consider the effectiveness 
of the authority’s risk 
management arrangements, 
the control environment and 
associated anti-fraud and 
anti-corruption 
arrangements. 

 
 

Partly 
compliant.  
 
 
 

Reports on these issues have 
been considered, including a 
recent report on the Statement 
on Internal Control (SIC). The 
focus has however been on 
audit and assurance rather 
than wider governance and 
risk matters. 
 

The Committee’s remit should 
be widened to oversee the 
effectiveness of the Council’s 
Governance, Risk & Control 
Framework. Specific ways in 
which this could be executed 
are noted below.  

� Seek assurances that action 
is being taken on all risk-
related issues identified by 
auditors and inspectors. 

 

Non-
compliant.  
 
 

Until recently the Corporate 
Improvement Plan has been 
the Council’s vehicle for 
addressing key risks. Progress 
against Plan has been reported 
to Executive Cabinet & O&S. 
 
A separate Strategic Risk 
Register is now being compiled 
to identify the key risks to the 
achievement of the new 
strategic objectives and 
priorities.    
 

The Committee should receive 
regular monitoring reports 
showing that action has been 
taken to: 
 
� Address all agreed 

external audit 
recommendations, 
including those relating to 
governance. 

 
� Address the risk issues 

identified in the new 
Strategic Risk Register. 

 
� Be satisfied that the 

authority’s assurance 
statements, including the 
Statement on Internal 
Control, properly reflect the 
risk environment and any 
actions required to improve 
it. 

 
 

Partly 
Compliant. 
 
 
 

Prior to formally approving the 
SIC, the Committee received a 
report explaining the basis on 
which it had been produced, 
following a detailed review of 
the Council’s internal control 
environment.  

The Committee should also 
receive regular reports on 
progress to address 
weaknesses in the internal 
control environment, identified 
through the SIC process. 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 105



� Approve (but not direct) 
internal audit’s strategy, plan 
and monitor performance. 

 

Compliant. 
 
 

  

� Review summary internal 
audit reports and the main 
issues arising, and seek 
assurance that action has 
been taken where 
necessary. 

 

Compliant. 
 
 
 

  

� Receive the annual report of 
the head of internal audit. 

 

Compliant. 
 
 

  

� Consider the reports of 
external audit and inspection 
agencies. 

 

Partly 
compliant. 
 
 
 

Significant pieces of work have 
tended to be individually 
reported, but the Committee 
has not policed the 
implementation of associated 
recommendations. 
 

As stated above, the 
Committee should receive 
regular monitoring reports 
showing that action has been 
taken to address all agreed 
external audit 
recommendations. 
 

� Ensure that there are 
effective relationships 
between external & internal 
audit, inspection agencies 
and other relevant bodies, 
and that the value of the 
audit process is actively 
promoted. 

 

Compliant 
 
 

The Committee have received 
a report on external / internal 
audit liaison and joint working 
arrangements and frequently 
questions their operation.  
 

 

� Review the financial 
statements, external 
auditor’s opinion and reports 
to members, and monitor 
management action in 
response to the issues 
raised by external audit. 

 

Partly 
compliant. 
 
 
 

Relevant reports have been 
received but the Committee 
has not policed the 
implementation of associated 
recommendations. 

As stated above, the 
Committee should receive 
regular monitoring reports 
showing that action has been 
taken to address all agreed 
external audit 
recommendations. 
 

 
FEATURES 
 

   

� Unbiased attitudes - treating 
auditors, the executive & 
management equally. 

 

Partly 
compliant 
 
 

The Committee has operated 
effectively and with integrity 
since its creation in 2002. 
However the new guidelines 
require it to be completely 
separate from the executive 
and have the ability to question 
it on matters of governance, 
risk and control.  
 

In addition to adopting wider 
Terms of Reference, the 
Committee’s membership, 
composition and overall mode 
of operation also need to be 
reviewed.    

� The ability to question the 
executive (leader or chief 
executive) when required. 

 

See above. See above. See above. 

� A membership that is 
balanced, objective, 
independent of mind and 
knowledgeable. 

 

See above. See above. See above. 

� A strong chair – displaying a 
depth of skills and interest. 

 

See above. See above. 
 

See above. 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 106



 
STRUCTURE & 
ADMINISTRATION 
 

   

� Be independent of the 
executive & scrutiny 
functions. 

 

See above. See above. See above. 

� Have clear reporting lines 
and rights of access to other 
committees / functions, for 
example scrutiny and 
service committees, 
corporate risk management 
boards and other strategic 
groups. 

 
 

Non-
compliant. 
 
   

The Committee’s reporting 
lines and inter-relationships 
with other committees and 
boards have not been 
formalised and are unclear. 

The Committee’s reporting 
lines and inter-relationships 
with other committees and 
boards need to be clarified, 
particularly with regard to the 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, Risk Management 
Board and Corporate 
Governance Group. 
  

� Meet regularly – about four 
times a year, and have a 
clear policy on those items 
to be considered in private 
and those to be considered 
in public. 

 

Partly 
compliant. 
 
 

Regular meetings take place 
but there is no clear policy on 
private / public business. 
 

A clear policy on the 
consideration of private / public 
business is required.  

� Meet privately and 
separately with the external 
auditor and head of internal 
audit. 

 

Non-
compliant. 
 
 

This facility is currently not in 
place. 
 

A facility needs to be 
established, to enable the 
Committee to meet separately 
with the external auditor or 
head of internal audit, if 
required. 
  

� Include, as regular 
attendees, the chief finance 
officer or deputy, head of 
internal audit and appointed 
external auditor and 
relationship manager. Other 
attendees may include the 
monitoring officer (for 
standards issues), chief 
executive and the head of 
resources (where such a 
post exists). These officers 
should also be able to have 
access to the committee, or 
the chair, as required. The 
committee should have the 
right to call any other officers 
or agencies of the council as 
required. 

 

Partly 
compliant. 
 
 
 
 

Although the required regular 
attendees do attend, the other 
suggested attendees have 
tended not to. 
 
The Committee has tended not 
to call any other officers or 
agencies, for example to 
discuss key agenda items. 

Agreement is sought as to 
which officers should regularly 
attend the Audit Committee. 
 
The Committee should be 
advised of its right to ask other 
officers to attend meetings as 
and when required.    

� Be properly trained to fulfil 
their role.  

Partly 
compliant. 
 
 
 

General training was provided 
when the Committee was 
established in 2002 but this 
has not been repeated for new 
members and does not cover 
the roles and responsibilities 
now expected. 
 

The newly constituted Audit 
Committee should be 
appraised of the new terms of 
reference and training provided 
on the Committee’s wider 
governance, risk and control 
remit. 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 107



CONCLUSIONS 

 
15. The Audit Committee has operated very effectively under its original terms of reference. 

However the new CIPFA Guidance stresses that the Committee now has a key role to 
play in monitoring the organisation’s overall governance arrangements, including risk 
management and performance and holding the Executive to account on these matters. 
It has a particularly important role in tracking the implementation of recommendations 
made by external and internal audit in these areas.  

 
16. This was recently endorsed by the Audit Commission in their Use of Resources report, 

whereby the Commission recommended the Council to “extend the Audit Committee’s 
terms of reference to more clearly specify its risk and governance remit and to support 
this with more awareness training”. The Commission also recommended that the Audit 
Committee should be “independent of both the Executive and Scrutiny functions” 

 
17. There are therefore important issues to be resolved regarding the Audit Committee’s 

remit, composition, membership, training and reporting lines. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
18. That the Audit Committee remit, composition, membership, training and reporting issues 

identified above be addressed, by: 
 

(a) Adopting the new CIPFA model Terms of Reference for Audit Committees; 

 

(b) Aligning the respective Terms of Reference of the Audit and O&S Committees to 
provide greater clarity of remit and avoidance of overlap; 

 

(c) Implementing the actions necessary to ensure compliance with the new CIPFA 
Guidance on Audit Committees; 

 

(d) Consulting the Audit Commission to determine what flexibilities may exist in terms of 
Audit Committee composition and membership. 

 

 

 
GARY HALL 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 
 

Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

“Called to Account” – The Role 
of Audit Committees in Local 
Government”. 

 

“Audit Committees – Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities”. 

1996 

 

 

 

2005 

Finance Unit 

 

 

 

Finance Unit 

Gillibrand St.Offices 

 

 

 

Gillibrand St.Offices 

 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Garry Barclay 5468 13/03/06 TofRRepJan06 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 108



APPENDIX 1 
 
 

ORIGINAL / EXISTING AUDIT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
 
i) to oversee all arrangements for both the internal and external audit of the Council's accounts and 

financial records;  

 

ii) to consider and make recommendations on:  

(a) the annual audit report and management letter of the external Auditor;  

(b) any other statutory report of the external Auditor;  

(c) any internal audit report that may be referred by the Chief Executive, the Director of Finance, the 

Director of Legal and Personnel Services (as Monitoring Officer), the Executive Leader or the Chair 

of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee;  

(d) the effectiveness and adequacy of the response by the Council, the Executive, any Committee or 

Sub-Committee of the Council or the Executive or of any officer to any internal or external audit 

report or management letter;  

(e) the systems of control and arrangements for the prevention of fraud and corruption within the 

Council's organisation; and  

(f) of any other matter relevant to the audit of the Council's accounts and financial records or its 

systems for the control and safeguarding of all the Council's assets, both financial and otherwise. 

  

iii) If necessary for the purpose of its functions, to consider and examine specific matters that have been 
the subject of an audit report, with the right to call for production of relevant documents in the 
possession or control of the Council, the Executive or an officer.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 109



APPENDIX 2 
 

NEW MODEL TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES 
 
AUDIT ACTIVITY 
 
� To consider the head of internal audit’s annual report and opinion, and a summary of internal audit 

activity (actual and proposed) and the level of assurance it can give over the council’s corporate 
governance arrangements. 

 
� To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested. 
 
� To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the providers of internal audit 

services. 
 
� To consider a report from internal audit on agreed recommendations not implemented within a 

reasonable time scale 
 
� To consider the external auditor’s annual audit letter, relevant reports, and the report to those charged 

with governance.  
 
� To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor. 
 
� To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives value for money 
 
� To liaise with the Audit Commission over the appointment of the council’s external auditor. 
 
� To commission work from internal and external audit. 
 
REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 
 
� To maintain an overview of the council’s constitution in respect of contract procedure rules, financial 

regulations and codes of conduct and behaviour. 
 
� To review any issue referred to it by the chief executive or a director, or any council body. 
 
� To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate governance in 

the council. 
 
� To monitor council policies on “raising concerns at work” and the anti-fraud and corruption strategy and 

the council’s complaints process. 
 
� To oversee the production of the authority’s Statement on Internal Control and to recommend its 

adoption. 
 
� To consider the council’s arrangements for corporate governance and agreeing necessary actions to 

ensure compliance with best practice. 
 
� To consider the council’s compliance with it’s own and other published standards and controls. 
 
ACCOUNTS 
 
� To review the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to consider whether appropriate accounting 

policies have been followed and whether there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from 
the audit that need to be brought to the attention of the council. 

 
� To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on issues arising from the 

audit of the accounts.   
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 110


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4a Use of Resources Audit Score Feedback
	4b Interim Audit Report
	4c Opinion Memorandum
	4d Performance Management
	4e Best Value Performance
	5 Internal Audit Plan 2006/07
	6 Role and Membership of the Audit Committee

